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A mural depicting the
history of mental health
services was unveiled to
mark the 10th anniversary
of the John Cade Building
at The Royal Melbourne.
Prof John Cade’s discovery
of lithium revolutionised the
treatment of mental illness.
His son, former intensive
care director Prof Jack
Cade, and granddaughters
Minnie (left) and Jacqueline
(also a doctor at the
hospital) joined Chairman
Robert Doyle in unveiling
the mural.
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Royal Melbourne
Cardiothoracic Surgeon
Prof Jim Tatoulis was invited
by the Society of Thoracic
Surgeons to present the
J. Maxwell Chamberlain
Memorial paper at its Annual
Scientific Meeting in the USA
– the greatest honour that can
be bestowed upon a cardiac
surgeon. The Society is one
of the two most prestigious
professional cardiothoracic
surgery organisations in the
world. The presentation was
in recognition of 30 years of
endeavour and research in
the use of arterial conduits
in coronary artery bypass
grafting, undertaken by
Prof Tatoulis and his
colleagues at the Austin
and Epworth hospitals.
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Melbourne Health at a glance

Our Vision, Mission
Values and Goals
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Our Vision

Underpinning our behaviour
and practice, informing all that
we do:

Passion for Caring –
Achieving the Extraordinary

> Respect for the dignity,
beliefs and abilities of
every individual

Our Mission

> Caring and compassion

Melbourne Health’s Mission
is to provide world-class
health care for our community.
We will embrace discovery
and learning, build collaborative
relationships and engage our
patients in their care.

We are one of Victoria’s leading public
healthcare services, with a strong tradition
of providing the best possible care for our
patients, excellent teaching and training for
staff and future health professionals, and
a commitment to medical research to
improve outcomes for all.

Our Values

Serving a population base of more than
one million Melburnians, as well as regional
and rural Victorians and interstate patients,
our world-class reputation has its beginnings
in The Royal Melbourne Hospital – Victoria’s
first public hospital – established in 1848
to answer the need for public health services
for a rapidly growing town.

> Unity as a team and in
embracing our communities
> Discovery through
passion for innovation
> Integrity by being open,
honest and fair

Today, we are a partner in the
internationally renowned Parkville
Precinct, with our services involved
in vibrant research programs turning
medical research into clinical
improvements for our patients.
Melbourne Health comprises The Royal
Melbourne Hospital, NorthWestern
Mental Health, North West Dialysis
Service and the Victorian Infectious
Diseases Reference Laboratory.

> Develop our workforce
> Improve the quality and
safety of our services
> Develop and encourage
strategic relationships
> Foster a culture of research
and innovation
> Build a sustainable
organisation

Aunty Di Kerr, Wurundjeri
elder, with Chief Executive
Linda Sorrell, and Manager
Social Work and Cultural
Diversity Julia Blackshaw,
at the launch of the Respecting
our Community Action
Plan 2011-13.
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Supporting us to achieve,
guiding our direction:
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Our Goals

The past year has been
an exceptionally busy one
for Melbourne Health as
we worked to deliver world
class healthcare for our
community and began
implementing our five
year strategic plan.
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Chairman and
Chief Executive’s Report

More than 98,000 inpatient services were
provided, almost 6000 more than the
previous year; the Emergency Department
had more than 57,000 emergency
presentations, of which 36,800 were for
non-admitted patients; and more than
645,000 outpatient appointments were
made in our acute, sub-acute and
mental health clinics.
Our capacity to meet this increase was
due to the efforts of our dedicated staff.
We opened a 12th operating theatre
following more than $4 million in funding
from the State government, and opened
a new ward giving us an additional
21 beds. We were also pleased to receive
$9.98 million in the State Budget to
redevelop our Allied Health building.
Among the strategies endorsed by
the Board this year were a three year
Fundraising Strategy, a Research Strategy,
and an Environmental Sustainability
Strategy. We are particularly proud of our
leadership in environmental sustainability
in the public health sector and believe
we are the first Victorian public health
organisation to have such a formal strategy.
Of particular pride for Melbourne
Health was the development of the
Respecting our Community Action Plan
2011-13. Launched by the State Health
Minister David Davis, the Plan will bring
greater focus to the work we’ve already
done to create a safer, more supportive
and accessible environment for all
members of our community.

An organisation wide Health Promotion
Policy was adopted, based on the World
Health Organization health promotion
standards and the Australian Healthcare
Standards’ criterion 2.4.1. As part of this
renewed focus on health promotion,
Melbourne Health is proud to be a Health
Promoting Health Service and member
of the International Health Promoting
Hospital Network. An advisory committee
will oversee the development and
implementation of an Action Plan, and
the committee will focus on capturing all
Health Promotion work being undertaken
at a service/department level and
documenting it in the plan. One of the
first projects for the Committee will be to
review and strengthen Melbourne Health’s
“Smokefree” policy and procedure.
A new structure was introduced for
The Royal Melbourne Hospital to provide
a more clinically streamlined service
operation and to place the hospital in
a strong strategic position in relation
to the opportunities afforded by the
Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre
(Victorian CCC) project. Some services
and departments were re-aligned
within different service areas and a new
department of Cancer and Infection
Medicine Services was established.
To further strengthen our operations,
service charters were developed in
consultation with staff for Finance and
Logistics, and Human Resources and
Workplace Development, two portfolios
that serve the whole of Melbourne Health.
Charters for other Melbourne Health
portfolios will be developed in 2011/12.
Our commitment to clinical teaching
and research continued to prosper.
A relationship agreement with the
University of Melbourne was signed,
formalising what has been a long standing
and important partnership that stretches
back to the beginnings of the University
and the then Melbourne Hospital. A
number of projects with Parkville Precinct
partners are underway: construction has
begun on the Peter Doherty Institute for
Infection and Immunity, the Victorian
CCC, and the Melbourne Brain Centre at
The Royal Melbourne Hospital which will
be officially opened in August 2011.

Melbourne Health will bring a crucial clinical
perspective to these and other esteemed
education, research and biotechnology
institutes that make up the Precinct.
Melbourne Health continued to invest
in leadership, introducing a training
program in conjunction with Mount Eliza
Business School to assist managers and key
staff to build on their existing experience
and extend their managerial and leadership
capabilities. Our internal mentoring
program continued during the year and
was rated highly by participants.
We were also honoured to have a number
of esteemed guests during the year.
The Governor-General Ms Quentin Bryce
AC, visited Orygen Youth Health and met
with staff, clients and their families; while
Lord Ara Darzi, a former UK Minister for
Health and author of the 2007 review of
the National Health Service, spoke at a free
lecture for staff organised by The Royal
Melbourne Department of Urology,
The University of Melbourne and the
Epworth’s Prostate Cancer Research
Centre. We also thank the Federal and
State Health and Mental Health Ministers
and their respective departments for
their ongoing support.
This year we unveiled a mural recognising
the work of the late John Cade in the
treatment and care of people with a
mental illness. This unveiling celebrated
NorthWestern Mental Health’s 10th
anniversary of its acute inpatient unit
at The Royal Melbourne. Mental health
services were also enhanced with the
opening of a Prevention and Recovery Care
unit at Broadmeadows, the third such
service Melbourne Health has opened in
recent years to help people transition from
acute inpatient care to the community.
During the reporting period there was
no lost time as a result of industrial
disputation. Enterprise Agreements
covering Biomedical Engineers and
Medical Scientists, Pharmacists and
Psychologists were approved during the
year. Activity around the renegotiation
of enterprise agreements covering about
80 per cent of our workforce will
commence in the latter half of 2011.

Our nursing staff were recognised for their
leadership at the 2010 State Nursing and
Midwifery Excellence Awards: Jennifer
Robinson, Clinical Nurse Consultant,
NorthWestern Mental Health Aged Service
for the development of high-quality
palliative and end of life care for people
in residential care services; Julie Lemieux,
Clinical Nurse Educator, NorthWestern
Mental Health Aged Service for engaging
enrolled nurses and encouraging further
education; and Ashley Wheeler, Nurse
Unit Manager, Gardenview House, for
developing a culture of respect, teamwork,
professionalism and enthusiasm to deliver
a high standard of care to residents and
fellow staff members.
Our staff also excelled at the
Victorian Public Healthcare Awards,
with four finalists: Orygen Youth Health’s
Prof Pat McGorry, for outstanding
achievement by an individual, as a part of
the Minister for Mental Health Awards;
Melbourne Health’s Logistics team for
delivering sustainable and effective health
services; our nurse-led non-invasive muscle
bladder cancer surveillance service for
‘Improving access performance’; and in the
‘Improving quality performance’ category,
the Northern Psychiatric clinical risk
management initiative was a finalist.

We would also like to express our gratitude
and pride in our staff who extended their
compassion and caring beyond the hospital
walls to the wider community. Through a
staff giving campaign, more than $51,000
was raised to support the flood- affected
communities in Queensland and Victoria.
A sincere thank you to our many
volunteers, consumer participants and
supporters. Your generosity of time and
spirit helps keep us grounded and inspires
us to strive to live our organisational values.
Finally, in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 1994, we are pleased to
present the following Report of Operations
for Melbourne Health for the year ending
30 June 2011.

Robert Doyle
Chairman

Linda Sorrell
Chief Executive
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It was our pleasure to welcome
Prof Danny Liew to the key role of Chair
of Epidemiology, Biostatistics and Health
Services Research and the Inaugural
Director of the Collaborative Centre for
Epidemiology, Biostatistics and Health
Services Research.
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Past and present staff were recognised
for their contributions to public health,
research and education. Congratulations
to Dr Anne D’Arcy, Royal Melbourne’s
first Emergency Department Director and a
pioneer in establishing emergency medicine
as a specialty, was awarded the Medal of
the Order of Australia (OAM) in the 2011
Queen’s Birthday Honours, and to retired
Supreme Court Judge The Hon. Allan
McDonald, QC, a long-time member
of the MH Human Research Ethics
Committee, who received an AO (Officer
of the Order of Australia in the General
Division) in the 2011 Australia Day
Honours. Prof Andrew Kaye AM, was
awarded the prestigious Medal of Honour
by the World Federation of Neurological
Societies for his “outstanding achievement
in neurological surgery, scientifically
and professionally”.
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Financial summary

The key financial performance measure
monitored by Melbourne Health
Management and the Department of Health
is the ‘Net Result Before Capital and Specific
Items’. In 2010/11 Melbourne Health
achieved a deficit result of $2.39 million
which compared favourably by $1.21 million
with the budgeted target. The 2010/11 result
was also an improvement by $705,000 from
2009/10. This was especially pleasing given
the result was achieved with continued
growth in demand for patient services and
treating record patient numbers across

Melbourne Health. The result was largely
attributable to efficiencies achieved through
initiatives introduced in recent years.
Melbourne Health achieved a deficit
Net Result of $33.97 million in 2010/11
compared with a deficit Net Result of
$35.72 million in 2009/10.
The reason for the increased deficit from
the Net Result Before Capital and Specific
Items to the Net Result is due mainly
to the additional depreciation expense
incurred as a result of the asset revaluation
undertaken in 2008/09.

Total revenue from all services for
the 2010/11 financial year totalled
$855 million which is an increase of
$55 million or 6.9 per cent compared with
the previous year. Total expenditure was
$889 million which is an increase of
$53 million or 6.7 per cent. Melbourne
Health’s cash reserves as at 30 June 2011
were $34.7 million compared with
$37.1 million as at 30 June 2010.

Financial Summary
2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2009
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2006
$’000

Total Revenue

854,967

799,908

791,920

723,016

672,891

651,423

Total Expenses

889,138

835,874

769,641

704,537

684,301

647,470

Loss Attributable to Minority Interest

112

197

75

422

633

259

Net Fair Value Gains on Available for Sale Financial Investments

549

578

-

-

-

-

Changes in Property, Plant & Equipment Asset Revaluation Surplus
Comprehensive Result

214

424

-

-

-

-

(33,948)

(36,009)

22,204

18,057

(10,777)

4,212

Retained Surplus / (Deficit)

(99,475)

(61,338)

(23,405)

(42,531)

(61,057)

(42,737)

Total Assets

615,775

635,280

662,204

618,926

546,134

525,841

Total Liabilities

214,042

199,592

190,500

164,760

178,651

160,916

Net Assets

401,733

435,688

471,704

454,166

367,483

364,925

Total Equity

401,733

435,688

471,704

454,166

367,483

364,925

> Training to develop
and support leaders
of the future
> Programs to support
good communication
> Record number
of interns

Staff development
Sixty-five managers have completed the
Chameleon Program | Evolving Leaders
program which was offered for the first time
this year. Delivered by Mt Eliza Business
School, the tailored five-day program
enables managers to build on their existing
experience and extend their leadership
and management capabilities.
Melbourne Health’s Capability Framework
was revised to include more guidance and
support to educators, managers and other
staff. The document now includes human
resource management processes
in recruitment, annual work planning
and position design.
The 360° feedback initiative was
extended to senior medical staff this
year, following on from its introduction
to the top four tiers of management.
This annual process provides managers
with constructive feedback about their
behaviours and leadership qualities from
a selection of senior managers, peers
and staff who report directly to them.
Executive members and senior managers
participated in a Four Pillars of Culture
program. Based on the research of
Dr Peter Hart and Associates, experts
in the field of leadership behaviour, it
explores the behaviours that impact on
staff engagement, morale and clarity of
an organisation’s objectives.

An Enabling Employees for Achievement
management development program
was introduced in response to the
revised Individual Development and
Work Planning initiative. More than
200 managers and supervisors attended
sessions to develop skills to assist
employees with their annual planning and
review discussions, as well as everyday
strategies such as feedback and recognition.
Communication and Service Excellence
training was introduced to help reinforce
the Patient Centred Care model. The
Community Advisory Committee, staff
and managers helped design the training,
which explored the impact of behaviour on
internal and external customers, strategies
for building positive relationships, and
techniques for handling difficult
situations professionally.
Forty-four staff completed the Mentoring
@ Melbourne Health program during the
year. Each participant attended a workshop
followed by a 20-week program with a
selected mentor. The program’s evaluation
showed 80 per cent of participants
would like to become a mentor in future
programs. The success of the program has
seen a third program launched.
The biennial Melbourne Health Employee
Engagement Survey was held in March
2011, giving staff the opportunity to shape
the future of Melbourne Health, share their
views on what we do well and what we
can improve. Valuable information was
also provided regarding attracting and
retaining staff.
Following a benchmarking study
involving Australian and New Zealand
Health Round Table members on
industry standards for human resources
performance management practices,
Melbourne Health reviewed its system.

This has resulted in a new framework
which has an inclusive process for all staff,
consistent templates, resources and an
education program. The emphasis of
the framework is to retain, engage and
attract staff as part of our overall
workforce strategy.
An Integrated Staff Leave management
project began in August 2010 to improve
absenteeism and reduce Accrued Day Off
(ADO) and annual leave liabilities. Human
Resources used key performance data
to find new solutions to this long term
issue and to challenge assumptions about
why people accrue leave. The project has
resulted in Melbourne Health achieving
its year end performance target for excess
annual leave and ADO leave for the first
time in many years.

Staff recognition
A new Recognition Framework and
managers’ toolkit was launched this year
to assist in recognising and retaining staff
who contribute to Melbourne Health’s
Vision of Passion for Caring – Achieving
the Extraordinary. The toolkit assists
managers with principles and ideas for
staff recognition at a unit, department
or service level, ensuring the program
cascades throughout the organisation.
This year, a record 332 staff were
recognised at Melbourne Health’s annual
length of service awards. Continuous
service for 10, 20, 25, 30, 35, 40 or 45
years were celebrated and recognised.
The state Parliamentary Secretary for
Health, Mr Nick Wakeling, visited the
City Campus to celebrate International
Nurses’ Day. Mr Wakeling joined Executive
Director Nursing and Allied Health Services
A/Prof Denise Heinjus and Chief Executive
Linda Sorrell in handing our hampers to
staff in the ICU, Emergency Department
and wards. International Nurses’ Day
coincides with Melbourne Health’s Nursing
Excellence Awards, an annual event
recognising the contributions of individuals
and nursing teams.
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Highlights

The Women in Leadership initiative
saw a unique expansion of the
program – the inclusion of a ‘Men in
Leadership’ luncheon. The program is
part of Melbourne Health’s leadership
development and succession plan and
will continue to provide opportunities
for both genders.
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Developing our workforce

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011
8

Victorian Infectious Diseases
Reference Laboratory Director
Dr Mike Catton (centre) won
this year’s Chairman’s Award at
Melbourne Health’s annual Best
of Health – Celebrating Excellence
Awards. Dr Catton won the award
in recognition of his leading
role in viral infectious diseases
issues within Victoria, nationally
and internationally. Dr Catton
is pictured with Board Director
Michael Gorton AM and
Chief Executive Linda Sorrell.

Workforce and recruitment
More than 1740 new employees started
at Melbourne Health during the year.
A monthly orientation program is held
for all new employees, while new managers
attended the Managers Corporate
Induction program. A record 71 interns
were appointed, a 28 per cent increase
on the previous year. More than 100
graduate nurses began at The Royal
Melbourne in 2011, including three
graduates in the newly combined program
with NorthWestern Mental Health.
This program includes a six-month rotation
in psychiatric nursing, and six months
at The Royal Melbourne.
Allied Health opened its graduate
program to Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre partners. Graduates,
including two from Peter MacCallum
Cancer Centre, were registered across
Physiotherapy, Podiatry, Occupational
Therapy and Social Work.
Melbourne Health remains an attractive
employer to health professionals from
overseas, with 224 employees holding
a 457 visa. This includes 83 Medical
Officers, 43 Psychiatrists, 88 Nurses,

as well as Radiographers, Medical Scientists,
Clinical Psychologists, Physiotherapists,
Pharmacists and Social Workers.
The successful Mercury e-recruit system
has added an online employee variation
form, assisting managers in making changes
to employees’ details. In 2011, Human
Resources will be leading the transition to a
new version of e-recruit, further enhancing
the online recruitment system.

HR partnerships
The Public Tenant Employment
Program (PTEP) aims to address the
issue of high unemployment among those
living in public housing by collaborating
with organisations which can offer entry
level employment opportunities.
In 2010, Melbourne Health provided work
experience placements for three people
undertaking their Certificate III in Medical
Terminology and Administration.

Melbourne Health Employees 2011
Labour category

2011 June Current
Month EFT

2011 June YTD EFT
(average)

Nursing

2274.52

2247.39

Administration and Clerical

1013.46

1006.89

Medical Support

814.13

814.05

Hotel and Allied Services

443.87

441.63

Medical

123.98

129.66

HMOs

600.49

589.67

Sessional Clinical

176.58

164.17

Allied Health (Ancillary staff)

538.95

534.45

5986.00

5927.91

Total

Melbourne Health’s Wellbeing program
offers staff a broad range of services to
maintain and improve personal wellbeing.
More than 1200 staff took advantage of the
free Workplace Health Checks program,
a Victorian government WorkHealth initiative
to improve health awareness. 70 staff
participated in a WeightWatchers at Work
program, and 860 employees took part in the
annual Melbourne Health Walking Challenge
to walk 10,000 steps a day – the recognised
figure for maintaining good health.
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Melbourne Health has continued its focus
on staff health, safety and wellbeing during
the last 12 months. Its Occupational
Health and Wellbeing Strategic Plan
was developed and approved for
implementation across the organisation.

350
300
250
200
150
100
50
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Occupational Health, Safety
and Wellbeing

Work Cover Claims

Number of claims

Our strategic partnership with PTEP
enables us to support our recruitment and
employment needs and provides a social
benefit to the local community.

0
Total Claims

Linear (Total Claims)

Standard Claims

Linear (Standard Claims)

NorthWestern Mental Health, which has
had an Occupational Health & Safety
action plan for three years, had 100 per cent
compliance across the service, and a 30
per cent reduction in occupational violence
claims. The plan has been submitted to the
National Safety Council Australia (NSCA)
Award and 2011 Worksafe Award. A paper
will also be presented at the World Congress
on Safety & Health in Istanbul later this year.
An external evaluation is being undertaken
by the Department of Population Health
at the University of Melbourne.
A one-day Occupational Health and Safety
managers training program was developed
focusing on risk management and the
first steps to embedding a safety culture.
More than 150 managers completed this
program during the year.
Melbourne Health participated in the
Building Better Partnerships initiative
by the Department of Health, which aims
to facilitate better inter-agency management
of factors surrounding healthcare staff
interaction with police, ambulance
and correctional services, that impact
on the management and prevention of
occupational violence.

The Workplace Health
Check program underway
at Melbourne Health.
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Improving the quality and
safety of our services

Highlights
> Visiting hours policy
> P.A.R.T.Y. program
to reduce risk-related
trauma involving
young people
> Centralised triage for
mental health

Improving patient flow
As part of the new Commonwealth Health
reform program, Melbourne Health has
begun significant work to identify where
it should focus over the next two years to
help improve patient flow. Staff from all
clinical areas are involved in the process,
in which data is being collated to identify
the major constraints, including staffing,
processes and capacity.

Improvement projects
Melbourne Health has a comprehensive
model using Lean Six Sigma principles
– determining how to do things more
effectively and efficiently with existing
resources – which is applied to all
improvement projects.
This year, a Hospital Medical Officer
(HMO) rotation was added to the
Improvement Team model, providing
young doctors with the opportunity to

work on projects that improve clinical
services while receiving training and
experience in improvement techniques.
The first HMO worked with clinical teams
on the acute leukaemia patient pathway,
and models of care for managing general
surgery emergencies.

Patient Safety Leadership
WalkRounds
Patient Safety Leadership WalkRounds
were introduced during the year. A team
comprising a member of the Executive,
Service Director/Head of unit and Quality
Improvement teams regularly visit patient
care areas to discuss patient safety issues
with frontline staff. The WalkRounds
aim to identify practices and initiatives
contributing to better patient outcomes,
improve knowledge and attitudes about
patient safety, and promote activities to
decrease adverse events and create a safer
environment for patients.

Eight hour project
Melbourne Health has worked consistently
throughout the year to improve the
number of patients admitted, within eight
hours, to The Royal Melbourne from its
Emergency Department. Performance has
steadily improved over the year, which
has been achieved despite an increase
in the number of patients attending
the Emergency Department. In January
2011 alone, Emergency Department
presentations exceeded 5000.
A whole of hospital approach is necessary to
achieve the eight hour target. One example
of patient flow improvement was changed
discharge practices and coordination with
the Transit Lounge. The Lounge now
actively works with wards to collect patients
confirmed for discharge. The change in
practice has resulted in more than 50
patients a week being collected from the
wards, allowing ward teams to better
prepare for new patients and improving
patient access and flow.

A Visiting Hours policy was adopted
at both Royal Melbourne campuses in
March. Developed in consultation with
consumers, the policy supports family
participation in care which can improve
outcomes, reduce anxiety, improve family
satisfaction, improve the quality of care for
both patients and families and improve
communication. Central to the policy are
extended visiting hours (10am-8pm) and
a consistent afternoon patient rest
period across the wards.

The Prevent Alcohol and Risk-Related
Trauma in Youth (P.A.R.T.Y.) in-house
education program for secondary school
students was launched at The Royal
Melbourne in February. The program aims
to educate young people to recognise risks,
reduce the number of risk-related trauma
involving young people, and increase their
knowledge of the consequences of injury
on a person’s quality of life.

RAPID
Processes for identifying and treating
deteriorating patients early were enhanced
with the launch of a RAPID (Responding
Appropriately to Patients in Deterioration)
strategy across The Royal Melbourne in
May. All medical, nursing and allied
health staff working in clinical areas have
been educated and trained in RAPID
skills and a new patient observation
chart has been adopted.

Renal and nephrology services
Renal and nephrology services for rural
patients were expanded on two fronts.
In December, the Mildura Specialist
Nephrology Clinic opened as part of a pilot
program to support the local nephrologists.
A team comprising a nephrologist,
transplant surgeon, social worker and
coordinator visits the region twice a year,
providing improved access to transplant
and dialysis services for people living up
to six hours drive away from the hospital.
Nine new patients were seen at the first
clinic and several of them are now active
on the transplant waiting list.
Renal and Endocrinology Services is
also trialing an expanded Home Dialysis
Link Nurse program in Ballarat and
Wodonga. The program will enable
country haemodialysis patients to have
haemodialysis training in their local area,
reducing the average time spent receiving
such training from six weeks to two.

The P.A.R.T.Y. program is an important
prevention strategy. In the past five years,
the hospital has admitted more than
5000 patients aged between 15 and 25
years, with 30 per cent of these sustaining
life-threatening injuries with long-term
consequences.
Students spend the day in the hospital’s
Emergency Department, Intensive Care
Unit, trauma wards and rehabilitation
units, providing them with an insight into
the care and treatment required by patients
with acute injuries from motor vehicle
accidents and assaults.
The P.A.R.T.Y. concept first began in
Canada in 1990 and now operates across
more than 100 sites worldwide.

NorthWestern Mental Health
In August, a centralised triage service
was launched, providing callers with the
most advanced mental health triage
service in Australia.
The 24-hour service replaced the previous
55 access points that NorthWestern
Mental Health had to its clinical services.
The service comprises senior mental health
clinicians with many years experience and
has introduced new technologies
and processes.
The triage service provides advice or help
for adults who need mental health care.
The service also takes after-hours calls for
the youth and aged services in the area.

During the year a Productive Mental
Health Ward project was introduced
to better support wards in having more
time for patient care. The project
began in the Orygen Youth Health and
Broadmeadows acute inpatient wards
with teams examining how they can
improve their ward, including areas like
medication safety, meals, handover
and discharge planning.

Capital projects
To ensure Melbourne Health is able
to meet the future needs of Victorian
and local communities, planning for a
redevelopment of The Royal Melbourne
Hospital continued throughout 2010/11.
Melbourne Health has worked in
partnership with the Department of
Health to develop a Feasibility Study
for the first stage of a redevelopment
of the hospital’s City Campus.
More information about Melbourne
Health’s quality and safety initiatives
can be found in the Quality of Care
Report at www.mh.org.au
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P.A.R.T.Y. Program
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Visiting hours
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Developing and encouraging
strategic relationships

Highlights
> Clinical/research
exchange programs to
strengthen expertise
in our region
> Collaborations to
strengthen Parkville
Precinct expertise and
reputation
> Establishment of a
research centre to
tackle common brain
diseases

Partnerships and collaborations are an
important part of how Melbourne Health
conducts its business and helps to further
the reciprocal sharing of information,
expertise and experience. These
partnerships also foster good relations
and reinforce ties often established many
years ago. An example of collaboration in
action is the clinical/research exchange
program between The Royal Melbourne
and the Tianjin Medical University
Hospital which began this year.
The exchange aims to build a partnership
which supports clinical and research
initiatives and knowledge transfer, and
promotes excellence within our region.
Melbourne Health welcomed two Fellows
to The Royal Melbourne to work with
Prof Stephen Davis and A/Prof Bernard
Yan in Neurology. The exchange not
only promotes the expertise of The Royal
Melbourne, but also the City of Melbourne
Sister City Program.
Discussions around a similar exchange
program have begun with the Chinese
province of Jiangsu. Victoria has had a

Sister State relationship with the province
since 1979 and the Department of Health
is discussing a health agreement which will
provide for broad cooperation in health
with initial areas of interest in neurology,
blood safety issues and public health.

Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre
Enabling works will commence in July
2011 at The Royal Melbourne City Campus
in preparation for building extensions as
part of the Victorian CCC project.
The Victorian CCC will be located on
the former Royal Dental Hospital site.
The project will result in the creation of a
state-of-the-art 42-bed Intensive Care Unit
at The Royal Melbourne, a new central
surgical sterilising service for Melbourne
Health and Peter MacCallum Cancer
Centre, and two new inpatient units
providing 32 haematology beds and 32
medical oncology beds.
This year, it was announced that the
Royal Children’s Hospital would become
a member of the Victorian CCC, joining
Melbourne Health, Peter MacCallum,
Royal Women’s Hospital, The University
of Melbourne, Ludwig Institute for Cancer
Research and Walter and Eliza Hall
Institute in this collaboration.
Prof James Bishop AO was appointed
the inaugural CEO of the Victorian CCC
and the University of Melbourne Chair of
Cancer Medicine in May. Prof Bishop most
recently was the Chief Medical Officer of
the Australian Government and a former
Director of Haematology and Medical
Oncology at the Peter MacCallum
Cancer Centre.
Melbourne Health hosted Prof Armand
Keating, from the University of Toronto
in Canada and President-elect of the
American Society of Haematology, at an
open forum which explored the challenges
and benefits of an integrated cancer service.
Prof Keating shared his experiences in
establishing the United Hospitals
Network in Toronto and, in particular,
its comprehensive cancer centre.

Western and Central
Melbourne Integrated Cancer
Service (WCMICS)
Melbourne Health hosted the WCMICS
Annual Forum in October. Nearly 80
representatives from constituent WCMICS
hospitals attended, including consumers
who volunteer their time to support
WCMICS initiatives. The forum showcased
the work occurring across WCMICS to
support the implementation of Victoria’s
Cancer Action Plan (VCAP) at member
health services.

NHMRC Centre for Excellence
at Royal Melbourne
A collaboration between Melbourne
Health Neurosciences and the University
of Melbourne is the recipient of funding
from the Federal Government to establish
a National Health and Medical Research
Council Centre for Research Excellence.
To be located within the newly established
Melbourne Brain Centre at The Royal
Melbourne, it will be one of only 11 such
centres across Australia announced by the
Government. The $2.5 million funding
over five years will provide support for
teams of researchers to pursue collaborative
research and further cement the important
role the hospital plays in promoting
translational research and improving
patient outcomes.
The Royal Melbourne is one of two clinical
partners in the newly established $200
million Melbourne Brain Centre. This
important collaboration brings together
scientists from the Florey Neuroscience
Institutes, the Mental Health Research
Institute and University of Melbourne,
and will put Melbourne at the forefront
of brain disease research. The Melbourne
Brain Centre comprises two purposebuilt facilities at the Austin Hospital and
University of Melbourne, as well as
The Royal Melbourne centre which will
officially open in August 2011.

Prof Stephen Davis was appointed
the inaugural Chair of Translational
Neuroscience by the University of
Melbourne. This new Chair is a highly
prestigious position created to provide
leadership in neuroscience research,
education and knowledge exchange
relevant to improving patient care.

Peter Doherty Institute
Work commenced in May on the $210
million Peter Doherty Institute for Infection
and Immunity, diagonally across the road
from The Royal Mebourne City Campus.
Melbourne Health’s Victorian Infectious
Diseases Service, Victorian Infectious
Diseases Reference Laboratory and the
Victorian Nosocomial Infection Surveillance
System will relocate there with several
University of Melbourne departments,
bringing together more than 700 scientists,
researchers and staff. The state-of-the-art
facility is due for completion in 2014 and
the Institute will also teach and train future
generations of students, clinicians and
researchers to help tackle critical public
health issues.

Workforce Partnerships
Human Resources continued to build
partnerships with the community,
supporting our sense of corporate social
responsibility. Worlds of Work (WOW)
is a week-long workplace visiting program
for 15-year-olds from disadvantaged
areas conducted by the Foundation for
Younger Australians. Melbourne Health
held three WOW events, including a
networking lunch where staff and students
participated in guided activities promoting
teamwork and communication and
enabling students to gain confidence in
the world around them. The program was
formally recognised in 2010 by winning
a Melbourne Health Better Health Award
in the ‘Develop and Encourage Strategic
Relationships’ category.
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Neuroscience Services’
Ms Mary Wong and Prof
Stephen Davis welcomed
Tianjin General Hospital’s
Ms Zhang Guojing and
Prof Wang Goulin to The
Royal Melbourne Hospital
to discuss the establishment
of clinical and research
exchange programs between
the two hospitals.
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Fostering a culture of research
and innovation

Highlights
> Strategy affirms leadership
in translational health
research
> Significant grants
for cancer, stroke and
rheumatology
> Governance toolkit for
Victorian researchers

The Cardiac Genetic
Clinic - an Australian first,
‘one-stop shop’ - won a
Melbourne Health Best
of Health Award in 2010.

Research Strategy
The Melbourne Health Research Strategy
2011-15 was launched at this year’s
Research Week, confirming research as a
key strategic direction for the organisation.
The Strategy aims to enhance opportunities
for research across all disciplines and
optimise our research partnerships, and
outlines our aspiration to be a leading
centre for the delivery of translational
health research and education.
Melbourne Health, through The Royal
Melbourne Hospital, NorthWestern
Mental Health, North West Dialysis Service
(NWDS) and the Victorian Infectious
Diseases Reference Laboratory (VIDRL),
continues to be a world leader in clinical
research. The organisation has strong
partnerships in the Parkville Precinct,
and these collaborations in translational
research leads to improved clinical practice
for the benefit of the Victorian community.
Melbourne Health recognises the
critical link between creating research
opportunities and attracting the best
and brightest to work at Melbourne

Health and within the Parkville Precinct.
The Research Strategy reinforces this link
and aims to ensure the sustainability of
research endeavours at Melbourne Health.
World class research is made possible
through the passion and dedication of
our staff toward embracing discovery and
learning and our organisation’s investment
in maximising research potential in a
multidisciplinary setting.

Collaborations
Melbourne Health recognises that
research is not only about clinical trials
and laboratory-based research but also
encompasses a breadth of activity
around implementing and evaluating
new clinical practices and technologies.
Melbourne Health researchers and
strategists are playing key roles across the
Parkville Precinct in current major projects
such as the Melbourne Brain Centre, the
Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre
(Victorian CCC) and the Peter Doherty
Institute for Infection and Immunity
(see page 13 for more details).

Melbourne Health, in conjunction
with The University of Melbourne, has
made two key research appointments:
Prof Danny Liew as Chair of Epidemiology,
Biostatistics and Health Services Research
at the University and Director of the
Melbourne EpiCentre (Epidemiology,
Biostatistics and Health Research); and
Prof Stephen Davis as the Inaugural Chair
of Translational Neuroscience. This is in
conjunction with the NHMRC Centre
for Research Excellence award for
Translational Neuroscience.
Melbourne Health also exercises influence
on research on the international stage and
seeks to further expand this influence.
Dr Bob Anderson spent valuable time
continuing his research into coeliac disease
in Boston, through the Melbourne/Boston
Exchange supported by the Melbourne
Boston Sister City Association.

Research grants
The organisation continues to attract
significant funding for research projects.
Here are just a few of the grants received
in the past 12 months.
> Several Victorian Cancer Agency Clinical
Research Fellowships for studies into
areas such as: examining drugs that
promote death of cancer cells and
improve therapy for cancers of the
blood; identifying new drugs that can
specifically target leukaemia stem cells;
and assessing care provided to brain
tumour survivors to minimise cancerrelated pain and improve quality of life.
> National Health and Medical Research
Council grants: Prof Ian Wicks, Head
of Rheumatology, is the chief
investigator for the Molecular Regulation
of Blood Cell Production and Function
study which was awarded $17 million
over five years; Royal Melbourne
Neurosciences Service Director Prof
Stephen Davis, and fellow chief
investigators Prof Geoff Donnan,
Graham Hankey and Mark Parsons,
received $8.7 million over five years
for the Improving Stroke Outcomes,
Attenuating Progression and
Recurrence study.

> Jane Bell Scholarships (two in 2010
to mark International Year of the
Nurse, funded by The Royal Melbourne
Graduate Nurses’ Association) were
presented to Jayne Amy, Vascular
Access Coordinator, North West
Dialysis Service, and Cathy Daniel,
Consultation Liaison Psychiatry Nurse
and Management of Clinical
Aggression Trainer.
The recent Global Financial Crisis
placed significant pressure on funding
channels, which affected the number of
new clinical trials, however Melbourne
Health was pleased to maintain a strong
program overall.
Internal research grants were made possible
through $900,000 funding from the annual
Royal Melbourne Home Lottery. Five grants
in aid were awarded, as well as the major
research grant to Dr Elizabeth Vincan of
VIDRL for her work on stem cells.
For the first time, Melbourne Health
awarded the Watt-Geyer grants for staff
undertaking research into liver or colorectal
oncology and brain oncology, following a
generous bequest from partners Allan Watt
and Chris Geyer. The recipients were
Dr Peter Revill from VIDRL for his project
on the association between Hepatitis B
virus and hepatocellular carcinoma,
and Dr Michael Wong from Neurosurgery
for his work on signaling networks in
brain tumours.

Office for Research
Melbourne Health clinical and non-clinical
research is supported by the Office for
Research, which has benefited from the
introduction of a comprehensive new
research management database, AU-ReDA.

Melbourne Health continues to be
part of Victoria’s Streamlined Ethical
Review Program as host of an accredited
‘reviewing’ Human Research Ethics
Committee (HREC) and a participating
clinical trials site. The HREC also received
three-year certification of its ethical review
processes under the NHMRC’s National
Certification Scheme of Institutional
Process related to the Ethical Review
of Multi-centre Human Research.
This certification allows the HREC
to undertake reviews of multi-centre
research across Australia.

Research Governance Toolkit
As part of its commitment to research
excellence and discovery, Melbourne
Health provided researchers across
the Parkville Precinct with access to
the Research Governance Toolkit
(RGT) Educational Seminar Series – a
comprehensive educational training
program, delivered as a series of five 2-hour
seminars covering research ethics and
governance, good clinical practice, tissue
and data banking and ionising radiation in
research, intellectual property, contracts
and other legal aspects of research, and
financial management of research. The
RGT training program was collaboratively
developed by research leaders at Melbourne
Health and other Victorian health services,
with support and oversight by the Victorian
Managed Insurance Authority, insurer of
all Victorian public hospitals. The program
is now being further developed as a series
of online training modules which will be
freely available to researchers in Victoria.

Research Week
Research Week 2011 was a resounding
success. The quality of presentations and
posters was a reflection of the very high
standard of research undertaken across the
organisation. The program featured 125
posters and 44 oral presentations from The
Royal Melbourne and NorthWestern Mental
Health departments, and collaborations
with Ludwig Institute for Cancer Research,
Walter and Eliza Hall Institute and The
University of Melbourne. The prestigious
Cleveland Young Investigator Award went
to Dr Kathryn Field from Medical Oncology.
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An Information Management and
Technology Strategic Directions 2011-15
document currently under development
will reflect the developing partnership with
the Victorian CCC and Precinct partners.
The key themes have been identified
as: a collaborative research capability to
help drive improved clinical outcomes;
shared clinical information to aid clinical
excellence; effective management of patient
flow; collaborative teaching and learning
environments; and building capability and
driving efficiency from all systems.

> ICU Renal Special Interest Group
received the inaugural Hospira Nursing
Research Grant 2010 to study the
relationship between blood and urine
pH and the progression of acute renal
failure in septic, critically ill patients.

15

Information Management
and Technology
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Building a sustainable
organisation

Highlights
> Think Green strategy
provides sustainability
blue print
> Installation of dry
cooling towers saves
more than one million
litres of water per year
> Intranet relaunch
gives staff comprehensive
online resources

Driving improvement initatives
For several years, Melbourne Health has
used the Lean Management and Six Sigma
principles to drive improvement initiatives
across the organisation. Melbourne Health
has now secured an Australian Research
Council Linkage grant to explore how
work process engineering methods,
such as Six Sigma, are implemented in
hospitals in Australia and Canada. The
three year research project will be done
in collaboration with Victoria, Monash
and La Trobe universities.

Think Green
In April, the Board endorsed Melbourne
Health’s Think Green Strategy 2011-15.
This strategy demonstrates Melbourne
Health is leading the way in environmental
sustainability within the Victorian
healthcare sector as the first metropolitan
health service to develop such a strategy.

Developed by the Think Green
committee, the strategy draws on national
and international benchmarking, and
brings together ongoing work around
environmental sustainability.
Hospitals have a large carbon footprint,
with public hospitals and health care
facilities accounting for about 60 per cent
of the Victorian Government’s energy
bill. Melbourne Health’s environmental
achievements range from standardising
green procurement to ground breaking
energy and water saving initiatives.

Green building design
The installation of LED lighting led
to a 20 per cent reduction in power
consumption, and ‘climate neutral’
carpet has been installed, reducing
CO2 emissions.

Green energy generation
Melbourne Health produces its own
energy using a co-generation plant and
generates electricity from natural gas.

Waste

> embed sustainability in
business practices

Auditing of all major utilities including
water, electricity and waste streams
provides an understanding of user profiles
and enables strategies to be developed
for higher end consumers and
departments. It also aids equipment
selection and purchase.

> improve resource efficiency,
focusing on waste management

Water

> create synergies through
strategic partnerships

The installation of 18 dry cooling towers
has saved Melbourne Health up to 60,000
litres of water per tower, or more than
one million litres per year.

Over the next four years,
Melbourne Health aims to:
> drive a ‘Think Green’ culture

> explore and implement innovation to
achieve greener facilities where practical.
Major initiatives at Melbourne Health
over the past five years include:

Energy efficiency
An electrical energy trial in 2010, with the
assistance of the Royal Women’s Hospital,
focused on reducing energy used by the
major air conditioning plant and resulted
in saving 1,204kWh per day.
An energy project has looked at reducing
unnecessary use of electricity. A number
of ‘behind the scenes’ changes to
facilities’ settings have reduced electricity
consumption and wall-mounted electricity
readers were trialed in a number of
wards and administration areas to
provide real-time information about
electricity consumption.

In addition, the installation of 200 water
restriction devices to all showers and hand
basins at The Royal Melbourne City and
Royal Park Campuses has saved 8.9 million
litres per year.
Water harvesting tanks at Melbourne
Health’s residential facilities enables water
to be used to sustain the rehabilitation
and therapy gardens.

Procurement
Melbourne Health has developed
sustainable procurement processes,
including sustainability specifications
in contracts and tenders; identifying and
engaging key suppliers and reviewing
their environmental performance; and
increasing the range of green office
products available for ordering.
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Fleet management
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Melbourne Health has 225 vehicles
distributed across 15 services and 70
cost centres. To improve the auditing
process and to collect reliable data to
manage current and future service needs,
a company was commissioned to audit
our vehicle fleet using GPS Data loggers
in June 2011. The data collected will be
analysed and recommendations made
to Melbourne Health in 2011/12 on
options to optimise fleet management.

Web development
A dynamic new Intranet and content
management system was launched in
March. The site has been welcomed by
staff, with 3000 registering their details
in the first days of the system going live.
During the first month of operation,
the site received more than 160,000
hits, and in May this rose to more than
189,000. Staff have benefited from
an improved design, a search facility,
virtual staff directory, icons for frequently
used databases, contact information
for all locations, news feeds and an
online calendar.
Stage two of the Intranet redevelopment
will include the addition of NorthWestern
Mental Health pages, and further
enhancements to improve this important
information portal for staff. A Melbourne
Health Internet redevelopment project
will be undertaken in 2011/12.

Harvested rainwater
sustains gardens at The
Royal Melbourne Hospital
Royal Park Campus.
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Community support

Highlights
> Royal Melbourne
Home Lottery success
funds research grants
> Imagine fundraising
dinner extends Music
Therapy program
> Dry July exceeds all
expectations

The Royal Melbourne
Hospital Foundation
The Royal Melbourne Hospital Foundation
Limited is a non-profit organisation whose
principal activity is to raise funds for The
Royal Melbourne Hospital and Melbourne
Health. The major fundraising activities
undertaken during the year include The
Royal Melbounre Home Lottery, bequests,
donations from people in the community
in response to general and specific public
appeals, fundraising events, grants from
Trusts and Foundations and support
from businesses.

The ongoing support of donors and our
hard working fundraisers is essential to
enable Melbourne Health to provide the
best possible health services and care for
our community. The support we receive
through the generosity of patients (past and
present), individual donors, community
groups and business supporters enables
us to deliver extra services, leading edge
clinical research, facilities, equipment and
comfort above and beyond that delivered
through our regular funding.
The Royal Melbourne Hospital Foundation
also receives incredible support from many
Trusts and Foundations that have ensured
improvement to our life saving health care
by upgrading and improving our major
medical equipment.
Our gratitude goes to the many individuals
and organisations that contributed
financially to support the Foundation
and positively contribute to the health
of all Victorians.
The Board of Directors approved a new
three-year strategy for the Foundation in
April 2011. As part of this strategy, the
Foundation will focus on developing new
and existing campaigns to encourage
continued and increasing community
support for the world class services
provided at The Royal Melbourne Hospital.

The Foundation is governed by a Board of
directors. The names and particulars of the
directors as of 30 June 2011 are:

Key highlights from 2010/11:

Mr Robert Doyle, Chair, appointed 2007
Ms Linda Sorrell, Director, appointed 2007
Ms Sharon McGowan, Director and
Company Secretary appointed 2010
Dr Gad Trevaks, Director, appointed 2008
Ms Florence Kingsley-Matthews,
Director, appointed 2009
Mr Peter Zwar, Director, appointed 2009

The Royal Melbourne Home Lottery
continued to grow in strength and
popularity with the public. All 80,000
tickets sold out eight days before the
early bird deadline, with the draw for the
3301 prizes including a $2.2 million East
Brighton home, occurring in September.
Congratulations to our winners and
thank you to all Lottery supporters.

The Royal Melbourne Foundation would
like to thank the 9000-plus people who
financially supported our fundraising
activities, the supporters who attended our
functions such as our Corpus Medicorum
concerts, Friends of the Hospital functions
and The Royal Melbourne Month
Community oration, and the 80,000
people who purchased tickets in our
sell-out Royal Melbourne Home Lottery.

This year’s Lottery funds supported major
research activities including many Research
Grants that were awarded to Melbourne
Health staff by an independent panel
of judges following a competitive grant
application round. The results of this
research will contribute to better health
outcomes for all Victorians.

Royal Melbourne Home Lottery

Imagine signature event
The inaugural ‘Imagine’ dinner event was
held in June 2011 to support the hospital’s
Music Therapy Program and the opening
of the new Vue de monde. The evening
contributed $80,000, which will enable the
music program to be extended in 2012.
The guests were treated to a degustation
menu by chef Shannon Bennett. The MC
was Matt Preston, Adam Hills presented
a comedy routine and Pete Murray gave
a memorable performance. One of the
highlights of the night was an inspiring film
showing the positive difference that music
therapy makes in the lives of patients being
treated for cancer at The Royal Melbourne
Hospital. Thank you to all our wonderful
supporters and particularly Shannon Bennett
for making this event such a success.

Dry July
The Royal Melbourne Hospital’s Oncology
Department was the grateful Victorian
recipient of funds raised during the national
‘Dry July’ campaign, with the hospital
receiving $151,000 from community
contributions. During a visit to the hospital,
Dry July Foundation’s Phil Grove and
Brett Macdonald were thrilled to see the
improved patient amenities and other
equipment purchased with funds received
from Dry July in 2009. The 2010 Dry July
Ambassadors and hospital staff, Prof Jeff
Szer and Dr Kate Drummond, were the
first and third top Dry July participants
supported in Victoria. The 1043 Dry July
fundraisers in Victoria who participated
included 60 Melbourne Health staff –
a fantastic team effort. The Royal Melbourne
sincerely appreciates the support and
commitment of the Dry July campaign.

Corpus Medicorum
The Doctors’ orchestra continued to gain
popularity, with a series of concerts held
at the Iwaki Auditorium, ABC Centre,
Southbank during the year. The Orchestra
was founded and is led by Royal Melbourne
Cardiothoracic Surgeon Dr Phillip Antippa,
with the concerts supporting hospital
cardiology services. The orchestra extends
its deepest appreciation to the Supporting
Sponsor and Patron – Mrs Barbara Haynes.
Event partners include Reid Health Care
and the Australian Medical Association.

Royal Melbourne Golf Classic

Volunteer and support groups

Twenty eight corporate teams participated
in the annual Royal Melbourne Golf Classic
at the Royal Melbourne Golf Club in October.
The event raised $50,000 for cancer research.

The Royal Melbourne Volunteer service
operates across both campuses of The
Royal Melbourne. The service consists of
almost 250 volunteers across 18 service
programs and six fundraising programs
and support groups.

The Foundation also works with five
support groups: Dialysis Support Group,
Diabetes Support Group, The Birthday
League, Graduate Nurses’ Association
and Friends of The Royal Melbourne,
who hold events and other fundraising
activities for equipment, programs and
research scholarships for MH staff.

Each program volunteer plays a vital
role in improving services and care for
patients, as well as supporting staff
across the organisation.

More than 20 volunteers also provide
advice to various official Melbourne
Health Committees.

Batten Trust donation
The Trustees of the Batten Trust donated
more than $215,000 towards the purchase
of high-tech surgical equipment to improve
the removal of brain tumours. More than
300 patients are operated on for brain
tumours at the hospital each year.
The CUSA equipment substantially
reduces the risk to the patient and makes
it possible to safely remove tumours that
were previously considered inoperable.

Culturally diverse support
To complement Melbourne Health’s
Respecting our Community Plan, The Royal
Melbourne Foundation launched a specific
campaign to members of the Chinese and
Vietnamese communities seeking their
support prior to the Chinese and Lunar New
Years. The appeal was successful, raising
more than $50,000. The Foundation thanks
all members of these communities
for their generous support.

The Royal Melbourne Volunteer Service
has an integral role in helping the
organisation meet the strategic goals
outlined in the Melbourne Health Strategic
Plan 2010 – 2015.
In 2011 the Volunteer Service underwent
a restructure and moved from the
Foundation’s fundraising operations to
sit within the Community Engagement
portfolio. The change in structure will
facilitate broader links for the volunteer
service and support growth and
diversification of activities undertaken
by volunteers.

Community Advisory Committee
The Community Advisory Committee
(CAC) is a committee comprising 10
community members from diverse
backgrounds who collectively provide
a voice for the community to the
Melbourne Health Board. The CAC
is responsible for developing strategic
objectives that support consumer
participation across the organisation
and monitoring the MH Community
Participation Plan.
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Each year, a morning tea
is held to say ‘thanks for
lending a hand’ to our
many volunteers. The
Volunteer service is an
integral part of Melbourne
Health, with participants
providing more than 360
weeks of service for the
benefit of our patients.
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Board of Directors

Melbourne Health was established in July
2000 under the Health Services Act 1988
(Victoria). The Board comprises nine
independent non-executive Directors.
The Directors are elected for a term of up
to three years, and may be re-elected to
serve for up to nine years.
The Board is accountable to the Minister
for Health. Its role is to exercise good
governance in the achievement of
Melbourne Health’s objectives as detailed
in the Melbourne Health Strategic Plan
2010-15 and Melbourne Health Annual
Business Plan. This necessarily includes
all of the following:

> Adopting a code of conduct for
staff of Melbourne Health
> Providing appropriate training for
Board directors and embedding regular
Board performance evaluation.
In December 2010, the Board endorsed
the Melbourne Health Corporate
Governance Framework, which provides
an outline of the key elements of corporate
governance structures at Melbourne
Health. The Framework will be reviewed
in 2013.

The Directors for 2010/11 were:

> Setting the strategic direction and
priorities for Melbourne Health and
monitoring compliance

Robert Doyle – Chairman

> Approving financial and business,
risk and audit plans, and budgets to
ensure the accountable and efficient
provision of health services by
Melbourne Health and its long-term
financial viability

Mr Doyle is the Lord Mayor of Melbourne
and a Principal with The Nous Group,
a management consultancy firm.
Previously, he was a Member of Victoria’s
Parliament for 14 years. His roles included
the Leader of the Opposition and Leader
of the Liberal Party, Shadow Minister for
Health and, in government, Parliamentary
Secretary for Health.

> The establishment and maintenance
of effective systems to ensure the
health services provided meet the
needs of the communities served by
Melbourne Health
> Taking into account the views
of consumers and providers of
health services
> Monitoring the performance of the
Chief Executive each financial year,
against agreed strategic plans
> Through the Chief Executive,
monitoring the effectiveness of
arrangements with other relevant
agencies and service providers to
enable effective and efficient health
service delivery and continuity
of care
> Advising the Minister for Health and
the Secretary of the Department on
significant Board decisions and issues
of public concern, which may affect
Melbourne Health
> Facilitating health research and
education

Mr Doyle was appointed Melbourne Health
Board Chairman in July 2007.

Ms Kate Redwood
Ms Redwood was first appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in July 2003.
Ms Redwood runs a consultancy practice.
Her previous appointments include CEO
of the Australian Physiotherapy Association,
Executive Director of Australian Red Cross
Victoria, and Executive Director of the
Victorian Council of Social Service.
Ms Redwood is also a former Councillor
for the City of Melbourne.

Prof James Angus AO FAA
Prof Angus was first appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in March 2004.
Prof Angus is the Dean, Faculty of
Medicine, Dentistry and Health Sciences
at the University of Melbourne. Previously,
he held the Chair of Pharmacology and
Head of Department at the University.
In June 2010 he was awarded an Order
of Australia for distinguished service to
biomedical research and medical education.

Mr Bill Mountford
Mr Mountford was first appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in July 2007.
Mr Mountford is a part-time
Commissioner with the Victorian
Competition and Efficiency Commission,
a Director of Insight Economics Pty Ltd
and a consultant with Egon Zehnder
International. He has been a Partner in
Business Consulting at Arthur Andersen,
Director of the Australian Manufacturing
Council and CEO of the Victorian
WorkCover Authority, as well as an
industrial policy adviser at state and
federal levels.

Ms Penelope Hutchinson
Ms Hutchinson was first appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in July 2007.
Ms Hutchinson is the Director of Arts
Victoria. She has been a former Partner at
BDO Nelson Parkhill, and has previously
been on a number of government boards,
including Medibank Private, Federal
Airports Corporation and the Victorian
College of the Arts. Ms Hutchinson
is also a former director of Studies for
Commerce at Ormond College, University
of Melbourne.

Prof David Hayward
Prof Hayward was first appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in July 2007.
Prof Hayward is Dean of Global Studies,
Social Science and Planning at RMIT.
He is a Life Member of the Victorian
Council of Social Service, a member
of the Australian Institute of Public
Administration and the Australian Institute
of Company Directors and is a Patron of
the Victorian Epilepsy Foundation.

Mr Michael Gorton AM
Mr Gorton was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2008.
Mr Gorton is a Partner in a Melbourne
law firm, Russell Kennedy Solicitors,
and a board member of the Victorian
Equal Opportunity and Human Rights
Commission and the Agency Management
Committee of the Australian Health
Practitioner Regulation Agency.

Mrs Bell was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2009.
Mrs Bell is a banking and finance lawyer
who has worked in leading law firms,
financial services and corporate treasury
operations nationally and internationally.
Mrs Bell is currently a Director of WorkSafe
Victoria and Prince Henry’s Institute of
Medical Research and Deputy Chair of
Westernport Water Corporation.

Mr Phillip Bain
Mr Bain was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2009.
Mr Bain is CEO of the Northern Division
of General Practice and Board President
of Darebin Community Health Service.
He is an Associate Fellow of the Australian
College of Health Service Executives, and a
former Councillor and Mayor of Northcote.
Further information about Melbourne
Health’s Strategic Plan, Board responsibilities
and Directors’ experience can be found
at www.mh.org.au

Board membership: Ms Penelope Hutchinson
(Chair), Mrs Jane Bell, Prof David Hayward.

Finance Committee
Board membership: Prof David Hayward
(Chair), Mr Bill Mountford, Mr Michael
Gorton AM.

Clinical Governance and
Improvement Committee
(Quality Committee)
Board membership: Mr Michael Gorton AM
(Chair), Mrs Jane Bell, Mr Phillip Bain,
Mr Bill Mountford.

Attestation on Compliance
with Australian and New
Zealand Risk Management
Standard
I, Robert Doyle, certify that Melbourne
Health has risk management processes
in place consistent with the Australian/
New Zealand Risk Management Standard
and an internal control system is in place
that enables the executive to understand,
manage and satisfactorily control risk
exposures. The Audit Committee verifies
this assurance and that the risk profile
of Melbourne Health has been critically
reviewed within the last 12 months.

Board Committees
The Board has established a number
of sub-committees and advisory
committees, which are also attended
by members of the Melbourne Health
Executive. The Chairman is an ex-officio
of each committee.

Community Advisory Committee
Board membership: Ms Kate Redwood
(Chair), Mr Phillip Bain, Mr Robert Doyle
and members of the community in which
Melbourne Health operates.

Primary Care and Population Health
Advisory Committee
Board membership: Mr Phillip Bain (Chair),
Ms Penelope Hutchinson.

Robert Doyle
Chairman
Melbourne Health
22 August 2011
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Mrs Jane Bell

Audit Committee
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Mr Gorton has been awarded Honorary
Fellowships with the Royal Australasian
College of Surgeons and Australian & New
Zealand College of Anaesthetists. He was
made a Member in the Order of Australia
in 2004 for his community contribution.
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Appendices

Statement of Priorities

Attestation on Data Integrity

The Statement of Priorities (SOP) is the
key accountability agreement between
Melbourne Health and the Victorian
Minister for Health. This annual agreement
ensures delivery of, or substantial progress
towards, the key shared objectives of
improved access and quality of services
and financial viability. The SOP is
published annually on the Department
of Health’s website.

I, Linda Sorrell, certify that Melbourne
Health has put in place appropriate internal
controls and processes to ensure that
reported data reasonably reflects actual
performance. Melbourne Health has
critically reviewed these controls
and processes during the year.

Linda Sorrell
Chief Executive
Melbourne Health
29 July 2011

Key Result Area

Deliverables

Outcome

Develop our Workforce

Develop and implement an Occupational Health
and Safety / Staff Wellbeing Strategy.

An Occupational Health and Safety Strategy and
Action Plan is in place across Melbourne Health.
The Action Plan is regularly reviewed to ensure that
the Strategy remains relevant and up to date.

Develop a Cultural Diversity Framework

Melbourne Health’s Respecting Our Community
Action Plan was officially launched by the Minister
for Health on 15 March 2011.

Implement a leadership and management
capability framework

A Framework has been developed and includes
Chameleon Program training and Mentoring
programs to develop leadership and
management skills.

Develop a Corporate Governance Framework

The Corporate Governance Framework was
endorsed by the Melbourne Health Board in
December 2010. The Framework has been published
and is now in place across Melbourne Health.

Utilise the Patient Safety Committee to increase
consumer engagement in care provision

The Patient Safety Committee includes a
consumer representative who is actively
involved in committee activities.

Develop an Evaluation Framework

The MH Evaluation Framework was approved by
the Executive Management Team in March 2011
and is in place across Melbourne Health.

Actively collaborate with partners to implement the
vision of the Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre

Multiple collaborative initiatives to date include:
a Roadmap for VCCC IMT Strategy; Critical Care
Working Group to progress an access policy for
partners; frameworks for joint appointments for
medical and allied health staff across VCCC partners.

Work in partnership with Precinct Partners toward
implementing the Peter Doherty Institute for Infection
and Immunity and the Melbourne Brain Centre at
The Royal Melbourne Hospital (formally the Centre
for Translational Neurosciences).

Public Affairs actively communicate with groups
associated with major Parkville Precinct initiatives.
Melbourne Health Communications and Community
Relations participate in regular network meetings
and include consumer representatives on major
projects.

Improve the quality and safety of our services

Develop and encourage strategic relationships

Melbourne Health Executive attend monthly Doherty
Steering Committee meetings and provide ongoing
specialist support with governance and legal
documentation.
The Melbourne Brain Centre has been completed
and will be officially launched in August 2011.
Foster a culture of innovation and research

Deliver a Research Strategy for Melbourne Health
for 2011-2015

Melbourne Health Research Strategy 2011-2015
was launched during Melbourne Health Research
Week in June 2011.

Build a sustainable organisation

Implement centralised triage to mental health services

Centralised triage commenced August 2010.
This service is now fully operational and processing
in excess of 7000 incoming and outgoing calls
per month.

Work with the Department of Health to progress the
Feasibility Study for the first stage of a multi-stage
Royal Melbourne Hospital Redevelopment

A draft of the Feasibility Study for Stage 1A of the
RMH Redevelopment has been completed and will
be considered by the RMH Redevelopment Steering
Committee in July 2011.

Develop a Strategic Service Plan for Trauma Services
at The Royal Melbourne Hospital

The Trauma Strategic Service Plan was endorsed by
the Melbourne Health Executive Management Team.

Redesign the Emergency Department Model of Care
at The Royal Melbourne Hospital

Model of Care initiatives have been implemented
and ongoing monitoring continues. Performance
indicators are improving as a result of these
initiatives.

Redesign and implement the agreed new community
model of care in Orygen Youth Health Mental Health
Clinical Program

Local implementation of the Orygen community
model is a component of the NWMH Strategic
Service Plan. A comprehensive project plan is
being implemented.
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Part B: Performance priorities

Financial performance
Operating result
Annual Operating result ($m)
Cash management/liquidity

Service performance
2010/11
Actual
- 2.4
2010/11
Actual

Creditors

48

Debtors

59

WIES activity performance
WlES (public and private) performance
to target (%)
Elective Surgery

2010/11
Actual
102
2010/11
Actual

Elective surgery admissions – quarter 1

1,922

Elective surgery admissions – quarter 2

2,003

Elective surgery admissions – quarter 3

1,875

Elective surgery admissions – quarter 4

1,860

Critical Care
lCU minimum operating capacity
Quality and Safety

2010/11
Actual
21
2010/11
Actual

Health service accreditation

Full compliance

Residential aged care accreditation

Full compliance

Cleaning standards

Full compliance

Submission of data to VICNISS (%)
VICNISS Infection Clinical Indicators
Hand Hygiene Program compliance (%)
SAB rate (OBDs)
Victorian Patient Satisfaction Monitor (%)
Mental Health

100
No outlier
67
2.39
RMH: City Campus: 74
RMH Royal Park Campus: 75
2010/11
Actual

28 day readmission rate (%)

15

Post-discharge follow-up rate (%)

81

Seclusion rate (OBDs)

27/1,000

Access performance

2010/11
Actual

Operating time on hospital bypass

1.2%

Emergency patients admitted to an inpatient
bed within 8 hours

68%

Non-admitted emergency patients with
length of stay of less than 4 hours

59%

Number of patients with length of stay in the
emergency department greater than 24 hours

0

Triage Category 1 emergency patients
seen immediately

100%

Triage Category 2 emergency patients
seen within 10 minutes

82%

Triage Category 3 emergency patients
seen within 30 minutes

71%

Elective surgery

2010/11
Actual

Category 2 elective surgery patients
waiting less than 90 days

58%

Category 3 elective surgery patients
waiting less than 365 days

87%

Number of Hospital Initiated Postponements
(HiPs) per 100 scheduled admissions

57,489

WIES Private

10,951

Total WIES (Public and Private)

68,440

WIES Renal

852

WIES TAC

4,774

WIES TOTAL

10%

75,826

Sub Acute Inpatient
452

Rehab L1 (non DVA)

2,064

Rehab L2 (non DVA)

244
29,401

Palliative Care – Inpatient

3,254

Transition Care (non DVA) – bed day

8,249

Restorative Care

4,013

Rehab 2 – DVA
2,220

1,760

WIES DVA

GEM (non DVA)
100%

2010/11 Activity
Achievement

WIES Public

CRAFT

Category 1 elective patients admitted
within 30 days

Number of patients on the elective
surgery waiting list

Weighted Inlier Equivalent
Separations (WIES)

GEM – DVA

120
1,521

Ambulatory
VACS – Allied Health
VACS - Variable
Transition Care (non DVA) – Homeday

25,354
118,077
9,784

SACS – Non DVA

34,735

Post Acute Care

2,225

VACS – Allied Health – DVA
VACS – Variable – DVA

2
48

SACS – DVA

324

Post Acute Care – DVA

500

Aged Care
Aged Care Assessment Service
Residential Aged Care

4,535
44,983

Mental Health
Inpatient
Ambulatory

66,809
187,418
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General information

Melbourne Health
Privacy Policy
Melbourne Health is committed to
protecting the privacy of its patients and
clients. The organisation is required by
law to protect personal and confidential
information such as information about
an individual’s health and other personal
details. Melbourne Health complies
with all applicable legislation relating to
confidentiality and privacy, including,
where relevant, the Health Services Act
1998 and the Health Records Act 2001.
Melbourne Health’s Privacy Policy is
available in hardcopy and online at
www.mh.org.au

Freedom of Information
All applications were processed in
accordance with the Freedom of Information
Act 1982, which provides a legally
enforceable right of access to information
held by government agencies. Melbourne
Health provides a report on these requests
to the Victorian Department of Justice.
Melbourne Health received nine requests
and had five requests in progress at the
beginning of the financial year.

NorthWestern Mental Health received
220 requests during the year and had 16
in progress at the beginning of the year.
> 138 were granted in full
> 55 were granted in part
> 24 were withdrawn
> three were denied
> 16 are in progress.

Whistleblowers Protection
Act 2001
Melbourne Health has a policy and
procedure in compliance with Part 6 of
the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001.
The policy and procedure are available to
all staff on the Melbourne Health Intranet
site. In accordance with the provisions
of Section 104 of the Act, no disclosures
were received during the year.

Merit and Equity Principles
Merit and equity principles are
encompassed in all employment
and diversity management activities
throughout Melbourne Health.

Building Act 1993
During the year, it has been Melbourne
Health’s practice to obtain Building Permits
for new projects where required and
Certificates of Occupancy or Certificates
of Final Inspection and certificates of
compliance for all completed projects.
Registered Building Practitioners have
been involved with all new building works
projects, and their registrations remain
current. In order to maintain buildings in
a safe and serviceable condition, routine
inspections and ongoing maintenance
programs were undertaken. Where
required, Melbourne Health proceeded
to implement the highest priority
recommendations arising out of those
inspections through planned rectification
and maintenance works.

Building certified for approved
design phase – under construction
Royal Melbourne City Campus
> Victorian Comprehensive Cancer
Centre (Victorian CCC) – extension
of 1B building
> Victorian CCC – enabling works
(infrastructure)

> 13 were granted in full

Competitive Neutrality

> Allied Health relocation

> one is in progress.

Melbourne Health continues to comply
with the Victorian Government’s
Competitive Neutrality Policy. In addition,
the Victorian Government’s Competitive
Neutrality pricing principles have been
applied by Melbourne Health from 1 July
2000 for all relevant business activities.

> Health Workforce Australia

The Royal Melbourne Hospital received
1833 requests during the year.
> 1089 were granted in full
> 11 were granted in part
> 70 were withdrawn
> 663 are in progress.

Victorian Industry Participation
Policy (VIPP)
Melbourne Health complies with the
intent of the Victorian Industry Participation
Policy Act 2003.
Within the past 12 months, Melbourne
Health entered into one service agreement
worth approximately $10.5 million
over four years for which VIPP applied.
This contractual relationship resulted in
10 existing jobs being retained and an
additional two employees being hired
by the provider.

> MRI replacement project
> Royal Melbourne feasibility study
> Catheter lab upgrade
> 1B building electrical upgrade
> Heating hot water pipe upgrade
> Theatre pendant upgrade

Royal Melbourne Royal Park Campus
> Electrical upgrade
> Mechanical upgrade
> Transition Care program in Park Hostel
> BreastScreen mechanical upgrade.

Details in respect to the items listed below
have been retained by Melbourne Health
and are available to the relevant Ministers,
members of Parliament and the public
upon request (subject to the Freedom of
Information requirements, if applicable):

> Cyril Jewell House mechanical upgrade.

Certified/final inspection
Royal Melbourne City Campus
> ACRF labs

(a) A statement of pecuniary interest
has been completed

> 12th theatre
> 5th floor infill

(b) Details of shares held by senior officers
as nominee or held beneficially

> HESP generator
> Melbourne Brain Centre at
The Royal Melbourne
> Ground Floor CMR refurbishment
> Nuclear medicine reception redesign
> 1 South Outpatient desk
> Melbourne Private Hospital
EWIS upgrade

(c) Details of publications produced by
the department about the activities of
the Health Service and where they can
be obtained
(d) Details of changes in prices, fees,
charges, rates and levies charged
by the entity
(e) Details of any major external reviews
carried out on the Health Service

> VIDRL PC4 lab upgrade.

Royal Melbourne Royal Park Campus
> B17 toilet exhaust upgrade
> Bone Densitometry fitout
> Environmental improvements to AC1,
AC2, AC3 and rehabilitation wards
> Priority 1 fire upgrades to patient areas.

NorthWestern Mental Health
> Orygen site electrical upgrade

(f) Details of major research and
development activities undertaken
by the entity that are not otherwise
covered either in the Report of
Operations or in a document that
contains the financial report and
Report of Operations
(g) Details of overseas visits undertaken
including a summary of the objectives
and outcomes of each visit
(h) Details of major promotional, public
relations and marketing activities
undertaken by the Health Service
to develop community awareness
of the Health Service and its services

> Broadmeadows Health Service
office refurbishment
> 362 Bell Street, Coburg, office
refurbishment.

Consultancies
>$100K
RSM Bird Cameron
S.O Asher Consultants

Project
particulars

Approved fees
(exc GST)

Incurred fees
(exc GST)

Audit

455,435.00

455,435.00

-

Fundraising

449,576.37

449,576.37

700,000.00

<$100K
Number of consultancies
106

Total cost
(exc GST)
947,313.00

Future
commitments

(i) Details of assessments and
measures undertaken to improve
the occupational health and safety
of employees
(j) General statement on
industrial relations within the
entity and details of time lost
through industrial accidents and
disputes, which is not otherwise
detailed in the Report of Operations
(k) A list of major committees
sponsored by the Health Service,
the purposes of each committee
and the extent to which the
purposes have been achieved.
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Additional Information

> Weighbridge facility upgrade
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NorthWestern Mental Health
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Organisational structure
as at 30 June 2011

Melbourne Health Board

Internal Auditors
Chief Executive
Ms Linda Sorrell
Acting Director Business Improvement
Mr Tobi Wilson

Executive Director
Clinical Governance
& Medical Services
Dr Peter Bradford

Clinical Epidemiology, Biostatistics
& Health Services Research
Health Information & Performance
Medical Governance

Pathology
Quality, Patient Safety
& Consumer Liaison

Strategy & Planning
VICNISS
VIDRL

Executive Director
Communications &
Community Relations
Ms Sharon McGowan

Community Engagement
Health Promotion

Public Affairs & Media
Archiving

Fundraising
Volunteers
The Royal Melbourne
Hospital Foundation

Executive Director
Corporate and Information
Services
Mrs Sally Campbell

Business Development
Capital Works
Commercial Operations*
Contract Management

Facilities Management
Health Sciences Library
Information Technology

Infrastructure Service
Legal Counsel
Retail

Executive Director
Finance & Logistics
Mr Colin Holland

Business Services
Commercial Operations*

Finance Services
Remuneration Services

Revenue Services
Supply & Logistics

Executive Director Human
Resources & Workplace
Development
Ms Christine Fitzherbert

Employee Relations
Employee Services &
Remuneration
Occupational Health & Safety

Organisational Development
Staff Support Services

Workforce Planning & Recruitment

Executive Director
NorthWestern Mental Health
A/Prof Alex Cockram

Inner West AMHS^
Mid West AMHS

Northern AMHS
North West AMHS

Aged Persons’ MHP
ORYGEN Youth Health

Executive Director
Nursing Services
& Allied Health
A/Prof Denise Heinjus

Allied Health
Clinical Policies & Procedure
Emergency Management Planning

Nurse Bank
Nurse Education
Nursing Workforce Unit

Professor of Nursing –
Translational Research
Professional Nursing

Executive Director
Research
Prof Ingrid Winship

Research Advisory Council
Research & Ethics Committees

Research Funding
Research Governance

Research Grants
Research Staff

Executive Director
The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Ms Diane Gill

Access
BreastScreen
Cancer & Infection Medicine
Cardiovascular
Emergency Services

Imaging
Intensive Care
Medicine & Community Care
Neurosciences & Continuing Care

Outpatients
Pharmacy
Renal & Endocrinology
Surgery & Perioperative

* Shared resource
^ Area Mental Health Service

Addiction Medicine
Anaesthetics
Ear, Nose & Throat
Gastroenterology
General Surgery
Oral & Maxillofacial
Orthopaedics
Pain Management
Perioperative
Plastics
Trauma

Cancer and Infection Medicine
Bone Marrow Transplant
Colorectal Medicine
Haematology
Medical Oncology
Radiation Oncology
Respiratory Medicine & Sleep Disorders
Palliative Care
Tumour streams
Urology
Victorian Infectious Diseases Service

Cardiovascular
Cardiology
Cardiac Surgery
Thoracic Surgery
Vascular Surgery

Shared Services
Emergency
Imaging
Intensive Care

Medicine and
Community Care
Aged Care
Aged Care Assessment Service
Assessment & Planning Unit
Community Support Services
General Medicine
GP Liaison
Hospital Admission Risk Program
Hospital In The Home
In Reach
Medihotel
Residential Care
Sub Acute Ambutory Care Service
Transition Care Program

Neurosciences and
Continuing Care
Dermatology
Immunology
Neurology
Neurosurgery
Ophthalmology
Rehabilitation
Rheumatology

NorthWestern Mental Health
Community Care
Crisis Assessment & Treatment
Eating Disorders
Inpatient Treatment
Neuropsychiatry
Rehabilitation
Residential Care
Substance Use & Mental
Health Treatment

Renal and Endocrinology
Bone & Mineral Service
Diabetes & Endocrinology
Diabetes Foot Service
Dialysis
Nephrology
Renal Surgery
Renal Transplant

Allied Health
Audiology
Music Therapy
Nutrition
Occupational Therapy
Pastoral Care
Physiotherapy
Podiatry
Prosthetics
Psychology
Social Work
Speech Pathology
Transcultural & Interpreting Service

University of Melbourne
appointments
James Stewart Professor of Medicine
Prof Terence O’Brien
James Stewart Professor of Surgery
Prof Andrew Kaye
Cato Professor of Psychiatry
Prof Ian Everall
Professor of Nursing – Translational
Research
Prof Nick Santamaria
Edgar Rouse Professor of Radiology
Prof Trish Desmond
Chair of Epidemiology, Biostatistics
and Health Services Research
Prof Danny Liew
Chair Translational Neuroscience
Prof Stephen Davis
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Thank you to
our supporters

Individual major donors

Bequests

B.Braun Australia Pty Ltd

Barbara R Haynes

Estate Leslie Frederick Klemke

Vodafone Foundation Australia

Erica Marlowe

Estate Ethel May Groat

S. O. Asher Consultants Pty Ltd

Thomas Hale

Estate Beatrice Mary McFarlane

Smart Salary Pty Ltd

Louisa Ng

Estate Florence May Phillips

RSM Bird Cameron

Betty Amsden

Estate Helen Mary Broad

Datasend Australia

Elizabeth Clifford

Lambrick John-Charitable Trust

JMP Consulting Engineers

Neilma B Gantner

Estate of David Rhodes

HealthSmart Pharmacy

John D Laidlaw

Estate John Frederick Wright

Dentoh & Associates Pty Ltd

Gregory V Shalit

Estate William Macrow

Agar Cleaning Systems Pty Ltd

Baillieu Myer

Estate Henrietta Lucy Cherry

Ferrier Hodgson

Heather Stone

Estate Salvatore Cocciufa

Siemens Limited

Jennifer Joe

Estate Pamela Marie Davison

Swingshift

Vivien Marks

Estate Lawrence Albert Smith

Nordia Foundation Pty Ltd

Marjorie Dunlop

Estate Harold Leonard Nelson

Nhu Lai Buddhist Meditation Association Inc

Andrew R MacFarlane

Estate Margaret Helen Smith

Flowers for Everyone
Powercor Australia Ltd

Ross E Barker

PSH Building and Management Services Pty Ltd

Zelman Elton

Corporate

Darryl W Stewart

Dry July Limited

Margaret M Bowman

St Jude Medical Australia Pty Ltd

Raymond Hepper

The Rangers

June Danks

Symbion Pharmacy Services

John A Frew

Leighton Contractors Pty Ltd

Jane Hellstrom

AECOM Australia Pty Ltd

Pearl Lubansky

Coloplast Pty Ltd

John Gramatikas

Reid Healthcare

Robert W Moses

Clifford Hallam Healthcare

Andrew Tivendale

Zouki Pty Ltd

Trusts and Foundations

E A Moffat

Fuji Xerox Australia

The Muriel and Les Batten Foundation

Peter T Guthrie

Baulderstone

The Ian Potter Foundation

George R Gilbertson

Audi Doncaster

Collier Charitable Fund

Isobel Long

Audi Penfold Burwood

Exxon Mobil

Kirsty M MacMillan

NAB Financial Planning

Medtronic Australasia Pty Ltd

Hao Chen

Hallam Truck Centre

Ethel Herman Charitable Trust

Mark Woodruff

Victorian Competition & Efficiency Commission

The Victorian Healthcare Association

Gad Trevaks

Ellenberg Fraser

The Hugh D T Williamson Foundation

Geoffrey Taylor

Middletons

Isobel Hill Brown Charitable Trust

Laurence Stewart

Equiset Services Pty Ltd

The William Angliss (Victoria) Charitable Fund

Treo Huynh

InterfaceFLOR

Perpetual Limited

Tina Tam

Bruno Distributors Pty Ltd

State Trustees Australia Foundation

Albert E Blashki

Stellar Asia Pacific

Department of Planning & Community Planning

Andrew Grigg

Russell Kennedy Pty Ltd

National Australia Trustees Ltd

Murk J Schoen

Black Moon Pty Ltd

Telematics Course Development Fund

Charlotte Woodgate

Primitus Jan Nominees Pty Ltd

Erin Paterson

Boston Scientific Pty Ltd

Please refer to The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Foundation Annual Statement for further
acknowledgement.

Chinese Masonic Society
Johnstaff Projects Pty Ltd

G.P.T. Ahaia Construction Pty Ltd
Bendigo Property Services
San Donato Committee
Cheng Investment Aust Pty Ltd
Trinity Catholic College
Global Management Group Pty Ltd
Borg Properties
MCT Constructions Pty Ltd
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The Annual Report of Melbourne Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This index has been prepared
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Board Member’s, Accountable Officer’s and Chief Finance & Accounting Officer’s declaration
We certify that the attached financial statements for Melbourne Health have been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2
of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards, Australian
Accounting Interpretations and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
We further state, that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement
of changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to and forming part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial transactions
during the year ended 30 June 2011 and the financial position of Melbourne Health at 30 June 2011.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the financial statements
to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

Mr Robert Doyle
Chairman

Ms Penelope Hutchinson
Chairperson,
Audit Committee

A/Prof Alex Cockram
Acting Chief Executive

Mr Colin Holland
Executive Director
Finance and Logistics

Melbourne Health
12 August 2011

Melbourne Health
12 August 2011

Melbourne Health
12 August 2011

Melbourne Health
12 August 2011

Comprehensive Operating Statement

Note

Parent Entity
2011
$’000

Parent Entity
2010
$’000

Consolidated
2011
$’000

Consolidated
2010
$’000

Revenue from Operating Activities

2

799,701

748,829

806,023

754,636

Revenue from Non-operating Activities

2

7,003

5,674

7,003

6,164

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory Sale

2

21,829

21,278

21,829

21,278

Employee Expenses

3

(570,009)

(524,360)

(570,856)

(525,147)

Non Salary Labour Costs

3

(14,548)

(13,471)

(14,531)

(13,471)

Supplies & Consumables

3

(139,159)

(138,257)

(139,160)

(138,258)

3

(85,380)

(81,512)

(91,077)

(87,243)

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

3

(21,829)

(21,278)

(21,829)

(21,278)

(2,392)

(3,097)

(2,598)

(3,319)
17,406
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Other Expenses From Continuing Operations
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items
Capital Purpose Income

2

19,800

17,400

19,834

Impairment of Financial Assets

3

(140)

-

(140)

-

Revaluation Reserve gain recognised on Non-Financial Asset

2

214

424

214

424

Reversal of impairment of Financial Assets

2

64

-

64

-

Depreciation and Amortisation

4

(51,087)

(49,988)

(51,121)

(50,016)

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income

3

(424)

(461)

(424)

(461)

(33,965)

(35,722)

(34,171)

(35,966)

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Net fair value gains/(losses) on Available for Sale Financial Investments
Net fair value revaluation on Non Financial Assets
Loss Attributable to Minority Interest
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

549

466

549

578

(214)

(424)

(214)

(424)

-

-

(112)

(197)

(33,630)

(35,680)

(33,948)

(36,009)

Balance Sheet
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As at 30 June 2011
Note

Parent Entity
2011
$’000

Parent Entity
2010
$’000

Consolidated
2011
$’000

Consolidated
2010
$’000

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

5

34,572

35,982

34,693

37,050

Receivables

6

46,442

42,900

47,937

42,655

Inventories

8

8,694

9,000

8,694

9,000

Other Current Assets

9

1,410

1,002

1,419

1,002

91,118

88,884

92,743

89,707

10,644

Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Receivables

6

11,599

10,644

11,599

Investments and other Financial Assets

7

10,408

8,804

5,942

5,329

Property, Plant & Equipment

10

493,439

515,046

493,461

515,070

Intangible Assets

11

6,697

9,391

12,030

14,530

Total Non-Current Assets

522,143

543,885

523,032

545,573

TOTAL ASSETS

613,261

632,769

615,775

635,280

Current Liabilities
Payables

13

66,945

64,270

68,157

65,143

Provisions

14

125,576

114,199

125,576

114,199

Other Liabilities

15

899

1,688

899

1,688

193,420

180,157

194,632

181,030

19,410

18,551

19,410

18,562

19,410

18,551

19,410

18,562

TOTAL LIABILITIES

212,830

198,708

214,042

199,592

NET ASSETS

400,431

434,061

401,733

435,688

144,347

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

14

Total Non-Current Liabilities

EQUITY
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus

16a

144,133

144,347

144,133

Financial Asset Available for Sale Revaluation Surplus

16a

1,015

466

1,127

578

Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus

16a

42,606

38,646

48,408

44,449

Contributed Capital

16b

304,943

304,943

304,943

304,943

Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)

16c

(92,266)

(54,341)

(99,475)

(61,338)

Minority Interest

16c

-

-

2,597

2,709

400,431

434,061

401,733

435,688

TOTAL EQUITY
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

20

Commitments for Expenditure

19

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Changes in Equity

Property, Plant
& Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
Note

Balance at 1 July 2009
Effects of correction of errors
Restated balance at 1 July 2009

Financial Asset
Restricted
Available for Specific Purpose
Sale Revaluation
Surplus
Surplus

Contributions by
Owners

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

144,771

-

42,489

304,943

(20,499)

471,704

-

-

-

-

-

-

144,771

-

42,489

304,943

(20,499)

471,704
(35,966)

Net result for the year as restated

16c

-

-

-

-

(35,966)

Other comprehensive income for the year

16a

(424)

578

1,960

-

(197)

1,917

Transfer to accumulated surplus

16c

-

-

-

-

(1,967)

(1,967)

144,347

578

44,449

304,943

(58,629)

435,688

Restated balance at 30 June 2010
Net result for the year

16c

-

-

-

-

(34,171)

(34,171)

Other comprehensive income for the year

16a

(214)

549

-

-

(112)

223

Transfer to accumulated surplus

16a

-

-

3,959

-

(3,966)

(7)

144,133

1,127

48,408

304,943

(96,878)

401,733

Financial Asset
Restricted
Available for Specific Purpose
Sale Revaluation
Surplus
Surplus

Contributions by
Owners

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

Total

Balance at 30 June 2011

Parent

Property, Plant
& Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
Note

Balance at 1 July 2009
Effects of correction of errors
Restated balance at 1 July 2009

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

144,771

-

37,427

304,943

(17,363)

469,778

-

-

-

-

-

-

144,771

-

37,427

304,943

(17,363)

469,778
(35,722)

Net result for the year as restated

16c

-

-

-

-

(35,722)

Other comprehensive income for the year

16a

(424)

466

1,219

-

-

1,261

Transfer to accumulated surplus

16c

-

-

-

-

(1,256)

(1,256)

144,347

466

38,646

304,943

(54,341)

434,061

Restated balance at 30 June 2010
Net result for the year

16c

-

-

-

-

(33,965)

(33,965)

Other comprehensive income for the year

16a

(214)

549

-

-

-

335

Transfer to accumulated surplus

16a

-

-

3,960

-

(3,960)

-

144,133

1,015

42,606

304,943

(92,266)

400,431

Balance at 30 June 2011

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2011
Note

Parent Entity
2011
$’000

Parent Entity
2010
$’000

Consolidated
2011
$’000

Consolidated
2010
$’000

Operating Grants from Government

632,266

595,756

654,939

611,481

Patient and Resident Fees Received

39,262

29,614

39,262

29,614

Private Practice Fees Received

20,509

19,988

20,509

19,988

Donations and Bequests Received

5,108

4,381

2,889

4,381

GST Received from/(paid to) ATO

22,177

20,829

22,177

20,829

123

296

123

296

2,053

1,844

2,851

2,150

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Recoupment from private practice for use of hospital facilities
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Other Receipts
Employee Expenses Paid
Non Salary Labour Costs

293

244

411

353

109,461

115,856

115,458

124,497

(563,634)

(527,178)

(564,465)

(527,878)

(8,900)

(7,555)

(8,900)

(7,555)

Payments for Supplies & Consumables

(141,054)

(140,346)

(162,226)

(161,350)

Other Payments

(112,220)

(106,008)

(118,308)

(107,239)

5,444

7,721

4,720

9,567

20,390

15,934

20,390

15,934

444

431

444

431

26,278

24,086

25,554

25,932

(27,288)

(33,959)

(27,511)

(34,841)

389

974

389

974

(26,899)

(32,985)

(27,122)

(33,867)

(621)

(8,899)

(1,568)

(7,935)

Cash Generated from Operations

Capital Grants from Government
Capital Donations and Bequests Received
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

17

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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34,294

43,193

35,362

43,297

33,673

34,294

33,794

35,362

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

These financial statements are a
general purpose financial report which
have been prepared in accordance with
the Financial Management Act 1994
and applicable Australian Accounting
Standards (AASs) and Australian
Accounting Interpretations and other
mandatory requirements. AASs include
Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards.
The financial statements also comply
with relevant Financial Reporting
Directions (FRDs) issued by the
Department of Treasury and Finance,
and relevant Standing Directions (SDs)
authorised by the Minister for Finance.
Melbourne Health is a not-for profit
entity and therefore applies the additional
Aus paragraphs applicable to “not-forprofit” Health Services under the AASs.
The annual financial statements were
authorised for issue by the Board of
Melbourne Health on 12 Aug 2011.

(b) Basis of accounting
preparation and
measurement
Accounting policies are selected and
applied in a manner which ensures that
the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability,
thereby ensuring that the substance of
the underlying transactions or other
events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below
have been applied in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2011, and the comparative
information presented in these financial
statements for the year ended
30 June 2010.

Under the accrual basis, items are
recognised as assets, liabilities, equity,
income or expenses when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for
those items, that is they are recognised in
the reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the historical cost
convention, except for the revaluation
of certain non-financial assets and financial
instruments, as noted. Particularly,
exceptions to the historical cost
convention include:
1) Non-current physical assets, which
subsequent to acquisition, are measured
at valuation and are re-assessed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amounts do not materially
differ from their fair values;
2) Derivative financial instruments,
managed investment schemes,
certain debt securities, and investment
properties after initial recognition,
which are measured at fair value
through profit or loss; and
3) Available-for-sale investments which
are measured at fair value with
movements reflected in equity
until the asset is derecognised.
4) The fair value of assets other than
land is generally based on their
depreciated replacement value
Historical cost is based on the fair values
of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

These financial statements are presented
in Australian dollars, the functional and
presentation currency of Melbourne Health.

In the application of AASs management
is required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the
judgments. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The financial statements, except for
cash flow information, have been prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in

The going concern basis was used to
prepare the financial statements.

the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or
in the period of the revision, and future
periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Judgements made by
management in the application of AASs
that have significant effects on the financial
statements and estimates, with a risk of
material adjustments in the subsequent
reporting period, are disclosed throughout
the notes to the financial statements.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements include all the
controlled activities of Melbourne Health.
Its principal address is:
c/o The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Victoria 3050.
A description of the nature of Melbourne
Health’s operations and its principal
activities is included in the report of
operations, which does not form part
of these financial statements.

(d) Principles of Consolidation
The assets, liabilities, incomes and
expenses of all controlled entities of
Melbourne Health have been included
at the values shown in their audited 30
June 2011 Annual Financial Statements.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by
Melbourne Health; control exists when
Melbourne Health has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account. The consolidated
financial statements include the audited
financial statements of the controlled
entities listed in note 25.
In the process of preparing consolidated
financial statements for Melbourne Health,
all material transactions and balances
between consolidated entities are eliminated.

Intersegment Transactions
Transactions between segments within
Melbourne Health have been eliminated
to reflect the extent of Melbourne Health’s
operations as a group.
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Associates
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method for accounting,
Melbourne Health’s share of the postacquisition profits or losses of associates is
recognised in the net result and its share
of post-acquisition changes in revaluation
surpluses and any other reserves, are
recognised in both the comprehensive
operating statement and the statement
of changes in equity.

Joint ventures
Investments in a joint venture partnership
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method
for accounting, Melbourne Health’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the joint venture partnership is
recognised in the net result and its share
of post-acquisition changes in revaluation
surpluses and any other reserves and any
other reserves, are recognised in both the
comprehensive operating statement and
the statement of changes in equity.
Details of the joint venture are set out
in note 22.

Jointly controlled assets
Interests in jointly controlled assets
are accounted for by recognising in
Melbourne Health’s financial statements
its proportionate share of the assets,
liabilities and any income and expenses
of such assets.

(e) Scope and presentation
of financial statements
Fund Accounting
Melbourne Health operates on a fund
accounting basis and maintains three
funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and
Capital Funds. Melbourne Health’s Capital
and Specific Purpose Funds include
unspent capital donations and receipts
from fund-raising activities conducted
solely in respect of these funds.

Services Supported By Health Services
Agreement and Services Supported By
Hospital and Community Initiatives
Activities classified as Services Supported
by Health Services Agreement (HSA) are
substantially funded by the Department of
Health and includes Residential Aged Care
Services (RACS) and are also funded from
other sources such as the Commonwealth,
patients and residents, while Services
Supported by Hospital and Community
Initiatives (H&CI) are funded by the
Melbourne Health’s own activities or local
initiatives and/or the Commonwealth.

Residential Aged Care Service
The Residential Aged Care Service
operations are an integral part of
Melbourne Health and shares its
resources. An apportionment of land
and buildings has been made based
on floor space. The results of the two
operations have been segregated
based on actual revenue earned and
expenditure incurred by each operation
in Note 2b to the financial statements.
The Residential Aged Care has a
separate Committee of Management
and is substantially funded from
Commonwealth bed-day subsidies

Capital and specific items, which are
excluded from this sub-total, comprise:
> Capital purpose income, which
comprises all tied grants, donations
and bequests received for the purpose
of acquiring non-current assets, such
as capital works, plant and equipment
or intangible assets. It also includes
donations of plant and equipment
(refer Note 1 (f)). Consequently the
recognition of revenue as capital purpose
income is based on the intention of
the provider of the revenue at the time
the revenue is provided.
> Specific income/expense, comprises
the following items, where material:
• Voluntary departure packages
• Write-down of inventories
• Non-current asset revaluation
increments/decrements
• Diminution/impairment of investments
• Restructuring of operations
(disaggregation/aggregation of
Health Services)
• Litigation settlements
• Non-current assets lost or found

Comprehensive operating statement

• Forgiveness of loans

The Comprehensive operating statement
includes the subtotal entitled ‘Net result
Before Capital & Specific Items’ to
enhance the understanding of the financial
performance of Melbourne Health. This
subtotal reports the result excluding items
such as capital grants, assets received or
provided free of charge, depreciation, and
items of an unusual nature and amount
such as specific income and expenses.
The exclusion of these items is made to
enhance matching of income and expenses
so as to facilitate the comparability and
consistency of results between years and
Victorian Public Health Services. The ‘Net
result Before Capital & Specific Items’ is
used by the management of Melbourne
Health, the Department of Health and
the Victorian Government to measure the
ongoing performance of Health Services in
operating hospital services.

• Reversals of provisions
• Voluntary changes in accounting
policies (which are not required by
an accounting standard or other
authoritative pronouncement of the
Australian Accounting Standards
Board)
> Impairment of financial and nonfinancial assets, includes all impairment
losses (and reversal of previous
impairment losses), which have been
recognised in accordance with
Note 1 (j) and (i)
> Depreciation and amortisation,
as described in Note 1 (g)
> Assets provided or received free of
charge (refer to Note 1 (f) and (h))

are recognised as income when Melbourne
Health gains control of the underlying
assets irrespective of whether conditions are
imposed on Melbourne Health’s use of
the contributions.

Balance sheet

Contributions are deferred as income
in advance when Melbourne Health
has a present obligation to repay them
and the present obligation can be
reliably measured.

Assets and liabilities are categorised
either as current or non-current.

Indirect Contributions from the
Department of Health

Statement of changes in equity

– Insurance is recognised as revenue
following advice from the Department
of Health.

The statement of changes in equity
presents reconciliations of each nonowner and owner equity opening balance
at the beginning of the reporting period
to the closing balance at the end of the
reporting period. It also shows separately
changes due to amounts recognised in
the comprehensive result and amounts
recognised in other comprehensive
income related to other non-owner
changes in equity.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to
whether or not they arise from operating
activities, investing activities, or financing
activities. This classification is consistent
with requirements under AASB 107
Statement of Cash Flows.

(f) Income Recognition
Income is recognised in accordance with
AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as
to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to Melbourne
Health and the income can be reliably
measured. Unearned income at reporting
date is reported as income received
in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where
applicable, net of returns, allowances and
duties and taxes.

Government Grants and other transfers of
income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions,
government grants and other transfers of
income (other than contributions by owners)

– Long Service Leave (LSL) – Revenue
is recognised upon finalisation of
movements in LSL liability in line
with the arrangements set out in
the Metropolitan Health and Aged
Care Services Division Hospital
Circular 14/2009.

Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue
at the time invoices are raised or accrued
when a patient is discharged or a
service is performed.

Private Practice Fees
Private practice fees are recognised as
revenue at the time invoices are raised
or accrued when a patient is discharged
or a service is performed.

Revenue from commercial activities

Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time
proportionate basis that takes in account
the effective yield of the financial asset.

Sale of investments
The gain/loss on the sale of investments is
recognised when the investment is realised.

Resources Provided and Received Free
of Charge or for Nominal Consideration
Resources provided or received free of
charge or for nominal consideration are
recognised at their fair value when the
transferee obtains control over them,
irrespective of whether restrictions or
conditions are imposed over the use of the
contributions, unless received from another
Health Service or agency as a consequence
of a restructuring of administrative
arrangements. In the latter case, such
transfer will be recognised at carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are
only recognised when a fair value can be
reliably determined and the services would
have been purchased if not donated.

(g) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are
incurred and reported in the financial
year to which they relate.

Cost of Goods Sold
Costs of goods sold are recognised
when the sale of an item occurs by
transferring the cost or value of the
item/s from inventories.

Revenue from commercial activities such
as commercial laboratory medicine is
recognised at the time invoices are raised.

Employee expenses

Donations and Other Bequests

> Wages and salaries;

Donations and bequests are recognised
as revenue when received. If donations
are for a special purpose, they may be
appropriated to a reserve, such as the
specific restricted purpose reserve.

> Annual leave;

Dividend Revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised on
a receivable basis.

Employee expenses include:

> Sick leave;
> Long service leave; and
> Superannuation expenses which are
reported differently depending upon
whether employees are members
of defined benefit or defined
contribution plans.
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> Expenditure using capital purpose
income, comprises expenditure which
either falls below the asset capitalisation
threshold or doesn’t meet asset
recognition criteria and therefore does
not result in the recognition of an asset
in the balance sheet, where funding
for that expenditure is from capital
purpose income.
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Defined contribution plans
In relation to defined contribution
(i.e. accumulation) superannuation
plans, the associated expense is simply
the employer contributions that are paid
or payable in respect of employees who
are members of these plans during the
reporting period. Contributions to defined
contribution superannuation plans are
expensed when incurred.

Defined benefit plans
The amount charged to the comprehensive
operating statement in respect of defined
benefit superannuation plans represents the
contributions made by Melbourne Health to
the superannuation plans in respect of the
Fund

services of current Melbourne Health staff
during the reporting period. Superannuation
contributions are made to the plans based on
the relevant rules of each plan, and are based
upon actuarial advice.
Employees of Melbourne Health are
entitled to receive superannuation benefits
and Melbourne Health contributes to
both the defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. The defined benefit
plan(s) provide benefits based on years of
service and final average salary.
The name and details of the major
employee superannuation funds and
contributions made by Melbourne
Health are as follows:
Contributions Paid or
Payable for the year
2011
$’000

2010
$’000

1,107

1,161

Defined benefit plans:
State Superannuation Fund – revised and new
Defined contribution plans:
VicSuper
HESTA
Health Super

212

138

8,803

7,792

33,509

32,304

Other

963

828

Total

44,594

42,223

2011

2010

- Structure Shell Building Fabric

5 to 50 years

5 to 50 years

- Site Engineering Services and Central Plant

5 to 29 years

5 to 29 years

- Fit Out

1 to 20 years

1 to 20 years

- Trunk Reticulated Building Systems

1 to 21 years

1 to 21 years

Plant & Equipment

3 to 10 years

3 to 10 years

Medical Equipment

5 to 10 years

5 to 10 years

Buildings

Central Plant

Computers and Communication
Furniture and Fitting

3 years

3 years

10 years

10 years

Motor Vehicles

4 to 5 years

4 years

Intangible Assets

1 to 5 years

1 to 5 years

2 to 10 Years

2 to 10 Years

Leasehold Improvements

As part of the Buildings valuation, building values were componentised and each component
assessed for its useful life which is represented above.

Depreciation
Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000
are capitalised and depreciation has been
provided on depreciable assets so as to
allocate their cost or valuation over their
estimated useful lives. Depreciation is
generally calculated on a straight line basis,
at a rate that allocates the asset value,
less any estimated residual value over
its estimated useful life. Estimates of the
remaining useful lives and depreciation
method for all assets are reviewed at least
annually, and adjustments made where
appropriate. This depreciation charge is
not funded by the Department of Health.
Depreciation is provided on property,
plant and equipment, including freehold
buildings, but excluding land and
investment properties. Depreciation begins
when the asset is available for use, which
is when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating
in a manner intended by management.
The following table indicates the expected
useful lives of non current assets on which
the depreciation charges are based.

Amortisation
Amortisation is allocated to intangible
assets with finite useful lives on a systematic
(typically straight-line) basis over the asset’s
useful life. Amortisation begins when the
asset is available for use, that is, when it is
in the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each annual
reporting period. In addition, an assessment
is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there are indicators that the
intangible asset concerned is impaired.
If so, the assets concerned are tested as to
whether their carrying value exceeds their
recoverable amount.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually or whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. The useful lives of intangible
assets that are not being amortised are
reviewed each period to determine

> Annually; and
> whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.
Any excess of the carrying amount over
the recoverable amount is recognised as
an impairment loss.
Intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised over a 1-5 year
period (2010: 1-5 years).

Finance Costs
Finance costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.
Finance costs include:
> interest on bank overdrafts and shortterm and long-term borrowings;
> amortisation of discounts or premiums
relating to borrowings;
> amortisation of ancillary costs incurred
in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings; and
> finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognised in accordance with
AASB 117 Leases.

(h) Resources Provided or
Received Free of Charge or
for Nominal Consideration
Resources provided or received free of
charge or for nominal consideration are
recognised at their fair value when the
transferee obtains control over them,
irrespective of whether restrictions or
conditions are imposed over the use of the
contributions, unless received from another
Health Service or agency as a consequence
of a restructuring of administrative
arrangements. In the latter case, such
transfer will be recognised at carrying value.
Contributions in the form of services are
only recognised when a fair value can be
reliably determined and the services would
have been purchased if not donated.

(i) Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and cash at bank, deposits at
call and highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less,
which are held for the purpose of meeting
short term cash commitments rather than
for investment purposes, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Investments and Other
Financial Assets
Investments are recognised and
derecognised on trade date where
purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery
of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.
Investments are classified in the
following categories:

For the cash flow statement presentation
purposes, cash and cash equivalents
includes bank overdrafts, which are
included as current borrowings in the
balance sheet.

> Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss;

Receivables

Melbourne Health classifies its other
financial assets between current and
non-current assets based on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its other financial assets at initial
recognition.

Receivables consist of:
> Statutory receivables, which includes
predominantly amounts owing from the
Victorian Government and GST input
tax credits recoverable; and
> Contractual receivables, which includes
of mainly debtors in relation to goods
and services, loans to third parties,
accrued investment income, and finance
lease receivables.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal
amounts due and are due for settlement
within 30 days from the date of
recognition. Collectability of debts is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts
which are known to be uncollectible are
written off. A provision for doubtful debts
is recognised when there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has
occurred. Bad debts are written off
when identified.
Receivables that are contractual are
classified as financial instruments. Statutory
receivables are not classified as financial
instruments.
Receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less any accumulated
impairment.

> Loans and receivables; and
> Available-for-sale financial assets.

Melbourne Health assesses at each balance
sheet date whether a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except those measured
at fair value through profit or loss are
subject to annual review for impairment.

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and attributable transaction costs are
expensed as incurred. Subsequently, any
changes in fair value are recognised in the
net result.
Financial assets held for trading purposes
are classified as current assets and are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in net result
incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in
Note 18.
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whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. In addition,
Melbourne Health tests all intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives for impairment
by comparing the recoverable amount for
each asset with its carrying amount:
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Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, term deposits
with maturity greater than three months
and other receivables are recorded at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Term deposits
with maturity greater than three months are
also measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment.
The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Held-to-maturity investments
Where Melbourne Health has the positive
intent and ability to hold investments to
maturity, they are measured at amortised
cost less impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Other financial assets held by Melbourne
Health are classified as being availablefor-sale and are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value are recognised directly in
equity until the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is included
in net result for the period. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in
Note 18.

Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period
Melbourne Health assesses whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial asset is impaired.
Objective evidence includes financial
difficulties of the debtor, default payments,
debts which are more than 60 days
overdue, and changes in debtor credit
ratings. All financial instruments assets,
except those measured at fair value through
profit or loss, are subject to annual review
for impairment.

Bad and doubtful debts for financial assets
are assessed on a regular basis. Those
bad debts considered as written off and
allowance for doubtful receivables are
recognised as expenses in the net result.
The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the financial asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate.
Where the fair value of an investment in
an equity instrument at balance date has
reduced by 20 percent or more than its
cost price or where its fair value has been
less than its cost price for a period of 12
or more months, the financial asset is
treated as impaired.
In order to determine an appropriate fair
value as at 30 June 2011 for its portfolio
of financial assets, Melbourne Health
obtained a valuation based on the best
available advice through a reputable
financial institution. This value was
compared against valuation methodologies
provided by the issuer as at 30 June 2011.
These methodologies were critiqued and
considered to be consistent with standard
market valuation techniques.
In assessing impairment of statutory
(non-contractual) financial assets, which
are not financial instruments, professional
judgement is applied in assessing
materiality using estimates, averages
and other computational methods in
accordance with AASB 136 Impairment
of Assets.

Net Gain/(Loss) on
Financial Instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial
instruments includes:
> realised and unrealised gains and
losses from revaluations of financial
instruments that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss or
held-for-trading;
> impairment and reversal of impairment
for financial instruments at amortised
cost; and
> disposals of financial assets.

Revaluations of Financial
Instruments at Fair Value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial
instruments at fair value excludes dividends
or interest earned on financial assets.

(j) Non-Financial Assets
Inventories
Inventories include goods and other
property held either for sale, consumption
or for distribution at no or nominal cost in
the ordinary course of business operations.
It includes land held for sale and excludes
depreciable assets.
Inventories held for distribution are
measured at cost, adjusted for any loss
of service potential. All other inventories,
including land held for sale, are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The bases used in assessing loss of
service potential for inventories held for
distribution include current replacement
cost and technical or functional
obsolescence. Technical obsolescence
occurs when an item still functions for
some or all of the tasks it was originally
acquired to do, but no longer matches
existing technologies. Functional
obsolescence occurs when an item no
longer functions the way it did when it
was first acquired.
Cost is assigned to land for sale
(undeveloped, under development and
developed) and to other high value, low
volume inventory items on a specific
identification of cost basis.
Cost for all other inventory is measured
on the basis of weighted average cost.
Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal
considerations are measured at current
replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
Inventories acquired at no cost or for
nominal consideration are measured
at current replacement cost at the date
of acquisition.

Non-financial physical assets and disposal
groups and related liabilities are treated as
current and are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable, the asset’s sale (or disposal
group) is expected to be completed within
12 months from the date of classification,
and the asset is available for immediate use
in the current condition.
Non-financial physical assets (including
disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are treated as current and are measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, and are not subject
to depreciation.

Property, Plant and Equipment
All non-current physical assets are
measured initially at cost and subsequently
revalued at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.
Crown Land is measured at fair value with
regard to the property’s highest and best
use after due consideration is made for any
legal or constructive restrictions imposed
on the asset, public announcements or
commitments made in relation to the
intended use of the asset. Theoretical
opportunities that may be available in
relation to the asset(s) are not taken into
account until it is virtually certain that any
restrictions will no longer apply.
Land and Buildings are recognised initially
at cost and subsequently measured at
fair value less accumulated depreciation
and impairment.
Land Under Declared Roads acquired
subsequent to 1 July 2008 is measured
at fair value. Land under declared roads
acquired on, or after 1 July 2008 is
measured initially at cost of acquisition
and subsequently at fair value. (Please
refer to AASB 1051 Land Under Roads and
FRD 118B Land Under Declared Roads for
further details).

Plant, Equipment and Vehicles
are recognised initially at cost and
subsequently measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Depreciated historical cost is generally a
reasonable proxy for fair value because of
the short lives of the assets concerned.
Cultural, Collections, Heritage Assets
and Other Non-Current Physical Assets
that the State intends to preserve because
of their unique historical, cultural or
environmental attributes are measured at
the cost of replacing the asset less, where
applicable, accumulated depreciation
calculated on the basis of such cost to
reflect the already consumed or expired
future economic benefits of the asset.
Restrictive nature of cultural and heritage
assets, Crown land and infrastructure
assets. During the reporting period,
Melbourne Health may hold cultural
assets, heritage assets, Crown land and
infrastructure assets.
Such assets are deemed worthy of
preservation because of the social rather
than financial benefits they provide to the
community. The nature of these assets
means that there are certain limitations
and restrictions imposed on their use
and/or disposal.

Revaluations of Non-current
Physical Assets
Non-current physical assets are measured
at fair value and are revalued in accordance
with FRD 103D Non-current physical assets.
This revaluation process normally occurs
at least every five years, based upon the
asset’s Government Purpose Classification,
but may occur more frequently if fair value
assessments indicate material changes in
values. Independent valuers are used to
conduct these scheduled revaluations and
any interim revaluations are determined
in accordance with the requirements of
the FRDs. Revaluation increments or
decrements arise from differences between
an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increments are credited directly
to the asset revaluation surplus, except
that, to the extent that an increment
reverses a revaluation decrement in respect
of that same class of asset previously

recognised as an expense in net result,
the increment is recognised as income
in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised
immediately as expenses in the net result,
except that, to the extent that a credit
balance exists in the asset revaluation
surplus in respect of the same class of
assets, they are debited directly to the
asset revaluation surplus.
Revaluation increases and revaluation
decreases relating to individual assets
within an asset class are offset against one
another within that class but are not offset
in respect of assets in different classes.
Revaluation surplus are normally not
transferred to accumulated funds on
derecognition of the relevant asset.
In accordance with FRD 103D,
Melbourne Health’s non-current physical
assets were assessed to determine whether
revaluation of the non-current physical
assets was required.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable
non-monetary assets without physical
substance such as patents, trademarks,
and computer software and development
costs (where applicable).
Intangible assets are initially recognised
at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Costs
incurred subsequent to initial acquisition
are capitalised when it is expected that
additional future economic benefits will
flow to Melbourne Health.

Other non-financial assets
Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include
prepayments which represent payments
in advance of receipt of goods or services
or that part of expenditure made in
one accounting period covering a
term extending beyond that period.
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Disposal of Non-Financial Assets

primarily to generate net cash inflows is
measured at the higher of the present
value of future cash flows expected to be
obtained from the asset and fair value less
costs to sell.

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be received from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it
is virtually certain that recovery will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial
assets is recognised at the date that control
of the asset is passed to the buyer and
is determined after deducting from the
proceeds the carrying value of the asset
at that time.

(k) Liabilities

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Payables

Employee Benefits

Apart from intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives, all other assets are assessed
annually for indications of impairment,
except for:

These amounts consist predominantly
of liabilities for goods and services.

Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave,
Sick Leave and Accrued Days Off

Payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and then subsequently carried at
amortised cost and represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to Melbourne
Health prior to the end of the financial year
that are unpaid, and arise when Melbourne
Health becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchase of
these goods and services.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave
accumulating sick leave and accrued
days off which are expected to be settled
within 12 months of the reporting date are
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits in respect of employee’s services
up to the reporting date, and are classified
as current liabilities and measured at their
nominal values.

> inventories;
> financial assets;
> investment properties that are
measured at fair value;
> non-current physical assets held
for sale; and
> assets arising from construction contracts.
If there is an indication of impairment,
the assets concerned are tested as to
whether their carrying value exceeds
their possible recoverable amount.
Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds
its recoverable amount, the difference is
written-off as an expense except to the
extent that the write-down can be debited
to an asset revaluation surplus amount
applicable to that same class of asset.
If there is an indication that there has
been a change in the estimate of an
asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised, the
carrying amount shall be increased to its
recoverable amount. This reversal of the
impairment loss occurs only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised in prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the
loss or destruction of an asset, the future
economic benefits arising from the use of
the asset will be replaced unless a specific
decision to the contrary has been made.
The recoverable amount for most assets
is measured at the higher of depreciated
replacement cost and fair value less costs
to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held

The normal credit terms are usually
Nett 30 days.

Borrowings
Borrowings in the balance sheet are
recognised at fair value upon initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are measured
at amortised cost with any difference
between the initial recognised amount and
the redemption value being recognised
in the net result over the period of the
borrowing using the effective interest
method. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 18.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Melbourne
Health has a present obligation, the future
sacrifice of economic benefits is probable,
and the amount of the provision can be
measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at reporting
date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows, using a discount
rate that reflects the time value of money
and risks specific to the provision.

Those liabilities that are not expected
to be settled within 12 months are also
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits as current liabilities, but are
measured at present value of the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled using the remuneration rate
expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL)
is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits.
Current Liability – unconditional
LSL (representing 10 or more years of
continuous service) is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements as a
current liability even where Melbourne
Health does not expect to settle the liability
within 12 months because it will not
have the unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement should an
employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL
liability are measured at:
> present value – component that
Melbourne Health does not expect to
settle within 12 months; and
> nominal value – component that
Melbourne Health expects to settle
within 12 months.

Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted
using interest rates of Commonwealth
Government guaranteed securities
in Australia.

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefit
Liabilities for termination benefits are
recognised when a detailed plan for the
termination has been developed and a valid
expectation has been raised with those
employees affected that the terminations
will be carried out. The liabilities for
termination benefits are recognised in other
creditors unless the amount or timing of
the payments is uncertain, in which case
they are recognised as a provision.

On-Costs
Employee benefit on-costs, such as
payroll tax, workers compensation and
superannuation are recognised together
with provisions for employee benefits.

Superannuation liabilities
Melbourne Health does not recognise
any unfunded defined benefit liability
in respect of the superannuation plans
because Melbourne Health has no legal
or constructive obligation to pay future
benefits relating to its employees; its
only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due. The
Department of Treasury and Finance
administers and discloses the State’s
defined benefit liabilities in its
financial statements.

Onerous contracts

Finance Leases

An onerous contract is considered to exist
when Melbourne Health has a contract
under which the unavoidable cost of
meeting the contractual obligation exceeds
the estimated economic benefits to be
received. Present obligations arising under
onerous contracts are recognised as a
provision to the extent that the present
obligation exceeds the estimated economic
benefits to be received.

Entity as lessor

Make good provisions
Make good provisions are recognised
when Melbourne Health has contractual
obligations to remove leasehold
improvements from leased properties and
restore the leased premises to their original
condition at the end of the lease term.
The related expenses of making good such
properties are recognised when leasehold
improvements are made.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised as an expense in
the estimated consolidated comprehensive
operating statement.

(l) Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as
either operating or finance leases based on
the economic substance of the agreement
so as to reflect the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
Leases of property, plant and equipment
are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Melbourne Health does not hold
any finance lease arrangements with
other parties.

Entity as lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets
and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair
value of the lease property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease
payment, each determined at the inception
of the lease. The lease asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful
life of the asset or the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned
between reduction of the outstanding lease
liability, and the periodic finance expense
which is calculated using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, and charged directly
to the comprehensive operating statement.

Operating Lease
Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.
Operating lease payments, including any
contingent rentals, are recognised as an
expense in the comprehensive operating
statement on a straight line basis over
the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern of the benefits derived
from the use of the leased asset.

Lease Incentives
All incentives for the agreement of a new
or renewed operating lease are recognised
as an integral part of the net consideration
agreed for the use of the leased asset,
irrespective of the incentive’s nature or
form or the timing of payments.
In the event that lease incentives are
received by the lessee to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefits of incentives are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straightline basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset is diminished.
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Non-Current Liability – conditional
LSL (representing less than 10 years
of continuous service) is disclosed
as a non-current liability. There is an
unconditional right to defer the settlement
of the entitlement until the employee has
completed the requisite years of service.
Conditional LSL is required to be
measured at present value.
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Leasehold Improvements
The cost of leasehold improvements are
capitalised as an asset and depreciated
over the remaining term of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the improvements,
whichever is the shorter.

(m) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting
Interpretation 1038 Contributions by
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities and FRD 119 Contributions
by Owners, appropriations for additions to
the net asset base have been designated
as contributed capital. Other transfers
that are in the nature of contributions or
distributions that have been designated
as contributed capital are also treated as
contributed capital.

Property, Plant & Equipment
Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to
record increments and decrements on the
revaluation of non-current physical assets.

Financial Asset Available-for-Sale
Revaluation Surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation surplus
arises on the revaluation of available-forsale financial assets. Where a revalued
financial asset is sold that portion of the
reserve which relates to that financial asset
is effectively realised, and is recognised in
the comprehensive operating statement.
Where a revalued financial asset is impaired
that portion of the reserve which relates
to that financial asset is recognised in the
comprehensive operating statement.

Specific Restricted Purpose Reserve
A specific restricted purpose reserve is
established where Melbourne Health has
possession or title to the funds but has
no discretion to amend or vary the
restriction and/or condition underlying
the funds received.

(n) Commitments for
expenditure

(q) Events after the
reporting period

Commitments for expenditure are
not recognised on the balance sheet.
Commitments for expenditure are
disclosed at their nominal value and are
inclusive of the GST payable. In addition,
where it is considered appropriate and
provides additional relevant information
to users, the net present values of
significant individual projects are stated.

Assets, liabilities, income or expenses
arise from past transactions or other past
events. Adjustments are made to amounts
recognised in the financial statements for
events which occur after the reporting
period and before the date the financial
statements are authorised for issue,
where those events provide information
about conditions which existed in the
reporting period. Note disclosure is made
about events between the end of the
reporting period and the date the financial
statements are authorised for issue where
the events relate to conditions which arose
after the end of the reporting period and
which may have a material impact on the
results of subsequent reporting periods.

(o) Contingent assets and
contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
are not recognised in the balance sheet,
but are disclosed by way of note and, if
quantifiable, are measured at nominal
value. Contingent assets and contingent
liabilities are presented inclusive of GST
receivable or payable respectively.

(p) Goods and Services Tax
Income, expenses and assets are recognised
net of the amount of associated GST,
unless the GST incurred is not recoverable
from the taxation authority. In this case it is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated
inclusive of the amount of GST receivable
or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included with other
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis.
The GST components of cash flows arising
from investing or financing activities which
are recoverable from, or payable to the
taxation authority, are presented as an
operating cash flow.
Commitments for expenditure and
contingent assets and liabilities are
presented on a gross basis.

(r) Foreign currency
All foreign currency transactions during
the financial year are brought to account
using the exchange rate in effect at the
date of the transaction. Foreign monetary
items existing at the end of the reporting
period are translated at the closing rate at
the date of the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary assets carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency translation differences
are recognised in ‘other comprehensive
income’ and accumulated in a separate
component of equity, in the period in
which they arise.

All amounts shown in the financial
statements are expressed to the nearest
$1,000 unless otherwise stated.
Figures in the financial statements may
not equal due to rounding.

(t) New Accounting Standards
and Interpretations
Certain new Australian accounting
standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for the
30 June 2011 reporting period.

As at 30 June 2011, the following
standards and interpretations had been
issued but were not mandatory for the
reporting period ending 30 June 2011.
Melbourne Health has not and does not
intend to adopt these standards early.

Standard/Interpretation

Summary

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
beginning or ending on

Impact on financial statements

AASB 9 Financial instruments

This standard simplifies requirements
for the classification and measurement
of financial assets resulting from Phase
1 of the IASB’s project to replace IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement (AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement).

Beginning 1 Jan 2013

Detail of impact is still being assessed.

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures
(Dec 2009)

Government related entities have been
granted partial exemption with certain
disclosure requirements.

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

Preliminary assessment suggests the
impact is insignificant. However, Melbourne
Health is still assessing
the detailed impact and whether to early
adopt.

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards

This Standard establishes a differential
financial reporting framework consisting
of two tiers of reporting requirements
for preparing general purpose financial
statements

Beginning 1 July 2013

The Victorian Government is currently
considering the impacts of Reduced
Disclosure Requirements (RDRs) for certain
public sector entities and has not decided if
RDRs will be implemented to the Victorian
Public Sector.

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
[AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118,
121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 and
1038 and Interpretations 10 and 12]

This Standard gives effect to consequential
changes arising from
the issuance of AASB 9.

Beginning 1 Jan 2013

Detail of impact is still being assessed.

AASB 2009-12 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards [AASB 5, 8, 108, 110,
112, 119, 133, 137, 139, 1023 and 1031 and
Interpretations 2, 4, 16, 1039 and 1052]

This standard amends AASB 8 to require an
entity to exercise judgement in assessing
whether a government and entities known to
be under the control of that government are
considered a single customer for purposes
of certain operating segment disclosures.
This standard also makes numerous editorial
amendments to other AASs.

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

The amendments only apply to those
entities to whom AASB 8 applies, which
are for-profit entities except for-profit
government departments. Detail of impact
is still being assessed.

AASB 2009-14 Amendments to Australian
Interpretation – Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement [AASB Interpretation 14]

Amendments to Interpretation 14 arise from
the issuance of prepayments of
a minimum funding requirement.

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

Expected to have no significant impact.

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from Reduced
Disclosure Requirements

This Standard makes amendments to
many Australian Accounting Standards,
including Interpretations, to introduce
reduced disclosure requirements to the
pronouncements for application by certain
types of entities.

Beginning 1 July 2013

Does not affect financial measurement or
recognition, so is not expected to have any
impact on financial result or position. May
reduce some note disclosures in financial
statements.

AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising
from the Annual Improvements Project
[AASB 1, AASB 7, AASB 101 & AASB 134 and
Interpretation 13]

This Standard makes numerous
improvements designed to enhance
the clarity of standards.

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

No significant impact on the financial
statements.

AASB 2010-5 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 101,
107, 112, 118, 119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137,
139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations
112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]

This amendment contains editorial corrections
to a range of Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations, which includes
amendments to reflect changes made to
the text of IFRSs by the IASB.

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

No significant impact on the financial
statements.
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Standard/Interpretation

Summary

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
beginning or ending on

Impact on financial statements

AASB 2010-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Disclosures on
Transfers of Financial Assets [AASB 1
& AASB 7]

This amendment adds and changes
disclosure requirements about the transfer
of financial assets. This includes the nature
and risk of the financial assets.

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

This may impact on departments and
public sector entities as it creates
additional disclosure for transfers of
financial assets. Detail of impact is still
being assessed.

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7,
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128,
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

These amendments are in relation to the
introduction of AASB 9.

Beginning 1 Jan 2013

This amendment may have an impact on
departments and public sector bodies as
AASB 9 is a new standard and it changes
the requirements of numerous standards.
Detail of impact is still being assessed.

AASB 2010-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets [AASB 112]

This amendment provides a practical
approach for measuring deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities when measuring
investment property by using the fair value
model in AASB 140 Investment Property.

Beginning 1 Jan 2012

This amendment provides additional
clarification through practical guidance.

AASB 2010-9 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters [AASB 1]

This amendment provides guidance for
entities emerging from severe hyperinflation
who are going to resume presenting
Australian Accounting Standards financial
statements or entities that are going to
present Australian Accounting Standards
financial statements for the first time. It
provides relief for first-time adopters from
having to reconstruct transactions that
occurred before their date of transition to
Australian Accounting Standards.

Beginning 1 Jul 2011

Amendment unlikely to impact on public
sector entities.

AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the TransTasman Convergence Project [AASB 1, AASB
5, AASB 101, AASB 107, AASB 108, AASB
121, AASB 128, AASB 132 & AASB 134 and
Interpretations 2, 112 & 113]

This amendment affects multiple
Australian Accounting Standards and AASB
Interpretations for the objective of increased
alignment with IFRSs and achieving
harmonisation between both Australian and
New Zealand Standards. It achieves this
by removing guidance and definitions from
some Australian Accounting Standards,
without changing their requirements.

Beginning 1 Jul 2011

This amendment will have no significant
impact on public sector bodies.

AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the TransTasman Convergence Project – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 101 & AASB
1054]

The objective of this amendment is to
include some additional disclosure from
the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project
and to reduce disclosure requirements
for entities preparing general purpose
financial statements under Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements.

Beginning 1 Jul 2013

The Victorian Government is currently
considering the impacts of Reduced
Disclosure Requirements (RDRs) and has
not decided if RDRs will be implemented to
Victorian Public Sector.

AASB 2011-3 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Orderly Adoption of
Changes to the ABS GFS Manual and Related
Amendments [AASB 1049]

This amends AASB 1049 to clarify
the definition of the ABS GFS Manual, and to
facilitate the adoption of changes to the ABS
GFS Manual and related disclosures.

Beginning 1 Jul 2012

This amendment provides clarification to
users on the version of the GFS Manual to
be used and what to disclose if the latest
GFS Manual is not used. No impact on
performance measurements will occur.

(u) Category Groups
Melbourne Health has used the following
category groups for reporting purposes for
the current and previous financial years.
Admitted Patient Services (Admitted
Patients) comprises all recurrent health
revenue/expenditure on admitted patient
services, where services are delivered in
public hospitals, or free standing day
hospital facilities, or alcohol and drug
treatment units or hospitals specialising
in dental services, hearing and
ophthalmic aids.
Mental Health Services (Mental Health)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on specialised mental Health
Services (child and adolescent, general
and adult, community and forensic)
managed or funded by the state or territory
health administrations, and includes:
Admitted patient services (including
forensic mental health), outpatient services,
emergency department services (where
it is possible to separate emergency
department mental Health Services),
community-based services, residential
and ambulatory services.

Outpatient Services (Outpatients)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on public hospital type
outpatient services, where services are
delivered in public hospital outpatient
clinics, or free standing day hospital
facilities, or rehabilitation facilities,
or alcohol and drug treatment units,
or outpatient clinics specialising in
ophthalmic aids or palliative care.
Emergency Department Services (EDS)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on emergency department
services that are available free of charge
to public patients.
Aged Care comprises revenue/expenditure
form Home and Community Care (HACC)
programs, Allied Health, Aged Care
Assessment and support services.
Primary Health comprises revenue/
expenditure for Community Health
Services including health promotion and
counselling, physiotherapy, speech therapy,
podiatry and occupational therapy.
Off Campus, Ambulatory Services
(Ambulatory) comprises all recurrent
health revenue/expenditure on public
hospital type services including palliative
care facilities and rehabilitation facilities,
as well as services provided under the
following agreements: Services that are
provided or received by hospitals (or
area health services) but are delivered/
received outside a hospital campus,
services which have moved from a hospital
to a community setting since June 1998,
services which fall within the agreed scope
of inclusions under the new system, which
have been delivered within hospital’s
i.e. in rural/remote areas.

Residential Aged Care including Mental
Health (RAC incl. Mental Health)
referred to in the past as psychogeriatric
residential services, comprises those
Commonwealth-licensed residential aged
care services in receipt of supplementary
funding from DH under the mental health
program. It excludes all other residential
services funded under the mental health
program, such as mental health funded
community care units (CCUs) and secure
extended care units (SECs).
Other Services excluded from
Australian Health Care Agreement
(AHCA) (Other) comprises revenue/
expenditure for services not separately
classified above, including: Public Health
Services including Laboratory testing,
Blood Borne Viruses / Sexually Transmitted
Infections clinical services, Kooris liaison
officers, immunisation and screening
services, Drugs services including drug
withdrawal, counselling and the needle
and syringe program, Dental Health
services including general and specialist
dental care, school dental services and
clinical education, Disability services
including aids and equipment and
flexible support packages to people with
a disability, Community Care programs
including sexual assault support, early
parenting services, parenting assessment
and skills development, and various
support services. Health and Community
Initiatives also falls in this category group.
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Note 2: Revenue

PARENT
HSA

HSA

H&CI

H&CI

Total

Total

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

611,933

568,479

-

-

611,933

568,479

Revenue from Operating Activities
Government Grants
- Department of Health
- Commonwealth Government
- Residential Aged Care Subsidy

5,980

5,865

-

-

5,980

5,865

- Other

8,623

8,273

10,448

11,037

19,071

19,310

626,536

582,617

10,448

11,037

636,984

593,654

10,313

7,853

-

-

10,313

7,853

1,023

1,864

-

-

1,023

1,864

11,336

9,717

-

-

11,336

9,717

Total Government Grants
Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
- Insurance
- Long Service Leave
Total Indirect Contributions by Department of Health
Patient and Resident Fees
- Patient and Resident Fees (refer note 2b)

35,415

28,187

1,443

865

36,858

29,052

Total Patient & Resident Fees

35,415

28,187

1,443

865

36,858

29,052

- Laboratory Medicine

11,807

11,653

-

-

11,807

11,653

- Diagnostic Imaging

12,290

10,956

-

-

12,290

10,956

5,639

4,143

2,581

4,889

8,220

9,032

-

-

1,853

1,849

1,853

1,849

Salary & Wages Recoveries

6,516

7,181

4,367

4,215

10,883

11,397

Shared Income - Pathology

11,807

11,653

-

-

11,807

11,653

-

-

21,829

21,278

21,829

21,278

59

66

3,871

3,589

3,930

3,655

-

-

7,103

8,750

7,103

8,750

48,118

45,652

41,604

44,570

89,722

90,223
6,261

Business units

Commercial Activities & Specific Purpose Funds
- Private Practice and Other Patient Activities Fees
External Supply Agreements

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale
Property Income
Research
Total Business Units & Specific Purpose Funds
Donations & Bequests
Recoupment from Private Practice for Use of Hospital Facilities
Other Revenue from Operating Activities
Sub-Total Revenue from Operating Activities

-

-

5,536

6,261

5,536

38

158

85

138

123

296

34,264

32,945

11,400

11,615

45,664

44,559

755,707

699,276

70,516

74,486

826,223

773,762

CONSOLIDATED
HSA

H&CI

H&CI

Total

Total

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

611,933

568,479

-

-

611,933

568,479

5,980

5,865

-

-

5,980

5,865

8,623

8,273

10,448

11,237

19,071

19,510

626,536

582,617

10,448

11,237

636,984

593,854
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10,313

7,853

-

-

10,313

7,853

1,023

1,864

-

-

1,023

1,864

11,336

9,717

-

-

11,336

9,717

35,415

28,187

1,443

865

36,858

29,052

35,415

28,187

1,443

865

36,858

29,052

11,807

11,653

-

-

11,807

11,653

12,290

10,956

-

-

12,290

10,956

5,639

4,143

2,581

4,889

8,220

9,032

-

-

1,853

1,849

1,853

1,849

6,516

7,181

4,367

4,215

10,883

11,397

11,807

11,653

-

-

11,807

11,653

-

-

21,829

21,278

21,829

21,278

59

66

3,813

3,590

3,872

3,656

-

-

7,103

8,750

7,103

8,750

48,118

45,652

41,546

44,571

89,664

90,224

-

-

3,317

4,812

3,317

4,812

38

158

85

138

123

296

34,264

32,945

19,083

18,671

53,347

51,615

755,707

699,276

75,922

80,294

831,629

779,570

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

52 Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

Note 2: Revenue (continued)

PARENT
HSA

HSA

H&CI

H&CI

Total

Total

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Interest & Dividends

1,893

1,624

417

395

2,310

2,019

Sub-Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

1,893

1,624

417

395

2,310

2,019

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

Revenue from Capital Purpose Income
State Government Capital Grants
- Targeted Capital Works and Equipment

-

-

3,439

2,331

3,439

2,331

- Other

-

-

15,538

13,596

15,538

13,596
1,403

Commonwealth Government Capital Grants

-

-

933

1,403

933

Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets (refer note 2c)

-

-

(110)

70

(110)

70

Sub-Total Revenue from Capital Purpose Income

-

-

19,800

17,400

19,800

17,400

Specific Income (refer note 2d)
Total Revenue (refer to note 2a)

-

-

278

424

278

424

757,600

700,900

91,011

92,705

848,611

793,605

Indirect contributions by Department of Health: Department of Health makes certain payments on behalf of the Health Service.
These amounts have been brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expen

CONSOLIDATED
HSA

HSA

H&CI

H&CI

Total

Total

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

1,893

1,624

1,333

885

3,226

2,509

1,893

1,624

1,333

885

3,226

2,509

-

-

3,439

2,331

3,439

2,331

-

-

15,572

13,602

15,572

13,602

-

-

933

1,403

933

1,403

-

-

(110)

70

(110)

70

-

-

19,834

17,406

19,834

17,406

-

-

278

424

278

424

757,600

700,900

97,367

99,008

854,967

799,908

53 Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 2a: Analysis of Revenue by Source
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(based on the consolidated view of note 2)
Admitted
Patients

Outpatients

EDS Ambulatory

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged
Care

Other

Total

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

179,314

6,187

26,747

36,161

143,480

12,278

2,809

204,956

611,932

4,279

148

638

863

3,424

293

67

4,891

14,603

3,022

104

451

609

2,418

207

47

3,454

10,312

300

10

45

60

240

21

5

343

1,024

10,378

358

1,548

2,093

8,304

711

163

11,861

35,416

1,652

57

246

333

1,322

113

26

1,889

5,638

11

-

2

2

9

1

-

13

37

Business units - Pathology & Radiology

7,061

244

1,053

1,424

5,650

483

111

8,071

24,097

Other Revenue from Operating Activities

15,426

532

2,301

3,111

12,344

1,056

242

17,634

52,646

555

19

83

112

444

38

9

634

1,894

221,998

7,659

33,114

44,768

177,635

15,201

3,479

253,746

757,599

Cafeteria & Functions

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,206

1,206

Car Park

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,922

4,922

Commonwealth Grants (non capital)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,515

9,515

Investment Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,333

1,333

Neuro Foundation

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,835

1,835

Revenue from Services Supported by
Health Services Agreement
Government Grants
- Department of Health
- Residential Aged Care Subsidy
Indirect contributions by Department of Health
- Insurance
- Long Service Leave
Patient & Resident Fees (refer note 2b)
Private Practice Fees
Recoupment from Private Practice for
Use of Hospital Facilities

Interest & Dividends
Sub-Total Revenue from Services Supported
by Health Services Agreement
Revenue from Services Supported by
Hospital and Community Initiatives

Non-admitted Patient Fees

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,443

1,443

Orygen Research Centre

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,644

1,644

Other SPF Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,468

3,468

Private Practice

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,666

2,666

Rental Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,871

3,871

Research

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,103

7,103

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory Sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

21,829

21,829

RMH Home Lottery

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,144

7,144

Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,959

5,959

Donations & Bequests (non capital)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,317

3,317

Capital Purpose Income (refer note 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

19,834

19,834

Specific Income (refer note 2d)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

278

278

Sub-Total Revenue from Services Supported
by Hospital and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

97,367

97,367

221,998

7,659

33,114

44,768

177,635

15,201

3,479

351,113

854,966

Total Revenue
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Note 2a: Analysis of Revenue by Source

EDS Ambulatory

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged
Care

Other

Total

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

168,495

5,600

23,704

31,211

134,094

14,289

2,758

188,328

568,479

4,190

139

589

776

3,335

355

69

4,684

14,137

2,329

77

327

431

1,852

197

38

2,602

7,853

552

18

78

102

440

48

9

617

1,864

Patient & Resident Fees (refer note 2b)

8,354

278

1,175

1,548

6,649

708

137

9,338

28,187

Private Practice Fees

2,677

89

377

496

2,130

227

44

2,992

9,032

47

2

7

9

37

4

1

51

158

Business units - Pathology & Radiology

6,701

223

943

1,241

5,333

568

110

7,490

22,609

Other Revenue from Operating Activities

13,914

462

1,957

2,577

11,073

1,180

228

15,552

46,943

Revenue from Services Supported by
Health Services Agreement
Government Grants
- Department of Health
- Residential Aged Care Subsidy
Indirect contributions by Department of Health
- Insurance
- Long Service Leave

Recoupment from Private Practice for
Use of Hospital Facilities

Interest & Dividends
Sub-Total Revenue from Services Supported
by Health Services Agreement

485

16

68

90

387

41

8

543

1,638

207,744

6,904

29,225

38,481

165,330

17,617

3,402

232,197

700,900

Revenue from Services Supported by
Hospital and Community Initiatives
Cafeteria & Functions

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,084

1,084

Car Park

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,336

4,336

Commonwealth Grants (non capital)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,834

9,834

Investment Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

885

885

Neuro Foundation

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,846

1,846

Non-admitted Patient Fees

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

865

865

Orygen Research Centre

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,773

1,773

Other SPF Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,573

3,573

Private Practice

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,027

5,027

Rental Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,589

3,589

Research

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,750

8,750

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory Sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

21,278

21,278

RMH Home Lottery

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,903

6,903

Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,623

6,623

Donations & Bequests (non capital)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,812

4,812

Capital Purpose Income (refer note 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,406

17,406

Specific Income (refer note 2d)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

424

424

Sub-Total Revenue from Services Supported
by Hospital and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

99,008

99,008

207,744

6,904

29,225

38,481

165,330

17,617

3,402

331,205

799,908

Total Revenue
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Note 2b: Patient and Resident Fees

Parent Entity
2011
$’000

Parent Entity
2010
$’000

Consolidated
2011
$’000

Consolidated
2010
$’000

27,105

21,169

27,105

21,169

670

186

670

186

1,016

865

1,016

865

5,199

4,265

5,199

4,265

798

719

798

719

1,980

1,796

1,980

1,796

Patient and Resident Fees Raised
Recurrent:
Acute
– Inpatients
– Outpatients
– Other
Residential Aged Care
– Generic
– Mental Health
Mental Health
Other
Total Recurrent

90

52

90

52

36,858

29,052

36,858

29,052

Capital Purpose:
Residential Accommodation Payments(*)

425

465

425

465

Total Capital

425

465

425

465

(*) This includes accommodation charges, interest earned on accommodation bonds and retention amount.
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Computer Software

3

-

3

-

Plant & Equipment

16

-

16

-
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Note 2c: Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets

Parent Entity
2011
$’000

Parent Entity
2010
$’000

Consolidated
2011
$’000

Consolidated
2010
$’000

Proceeds from Disposals of Non-Current Assets
Medical Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Buildings
Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets

13

3

13

3

376

132

376

132

-

838

-

838

389

973

389

973

Less: Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold

Medical Equipment

216

4

216

4

Motor Vehicles

264

61

264

61

Buildings

-

838

-

838

Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold

499

903

499

903

Net gains/(losses) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

(110)

70

(110)

70

Parent Entity
2011
$’000

Parent Entity
2010
$’000

Consolidated
2011
$’000

Consolidated
2010
$’000

214

424

214

424

64

-

64

-

278

424

278

424

Note 2d: Specific Income

Specific Income
Revaluation Reserve gain recognised on Non-Financial Asset
Other - Reversal of Impairment of Financial Assets
TOTAL
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Note 3: Expenses

PARENT
HSA

HSA

H&CI

H&CI

Total

Total

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Employee Expense
Salaries & Wages

484,139

441,932

20,360

21,687

504,499

463,619

WorkCover Premium

6,956

5,006

-

-

6,956

5,006

Departure Packages

410

409

48

23

458

432

Long Service Leave

13,058

13,572

432

-

13,490

13,572

Superannuation

42,970

40,133

1,636

1,598

44,606

41,731

547,533

501,052

22,476

23,308

570,009

524,360

Fees for Visiting Medical Officers

1,989

1,727

3

29

1,992

1,756

Agency Costs - Nursing

6,908

5,798

-

-

6,908

5,798

Agency Costs - Other

4,187

4,323

1,461

1,594

5,648

5,917

13,084

11,848

1,464

1,623

14,548

13,471

Total Employee Benefits
Non Salary Labour Costs

Total Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies & Consumables
Drug Supplies

28,438

45,509

4

2

28,442

45,511

S100 Drugs

15,570

16,724

-

-

15,570

16,724

Medical, Surgical Supplies and Prosthesis

69,351

50,076

781

538

70,132

50,614

Pathology Supplies

15,431

15,149

1,774

2,643

17,205

17,792

7,519

7,184

291

432

7,810

7,616

136,309

134,642

2,850

3,615

139,159

138,257

Food Supplies
Total Supplies & Consumables
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Domestic Services & Supplies

7,380

6,126

172

197

7,552

6,323

Fuel, Light, Power and Water

6,150

8,477

304

229

6,454

8,706

10,317

7,853

1

-

10,318

7,853

1,232

1,277

-

-

1,232

1,277

Insurance costs funded by Department of Health
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance

7,560

7,168

1,269

1,324

8,829

8,491

Maintenance Contracts

7,690

7,836

132

156

7,822

7,992

Patient Transport

1,891

2,087

4

-

1,895

2,087

Bad & Doubtful Debts

1,384

1,555

106

-

1,490

1,555

Lease Expenses

5,429

5,607

1,496

1,294

6,925

6,901

-

-

21,829

21,278

21,829

21,278

28,715

24,813

3,511

4,949

32,226

29,762

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase
Other Administrative Expenses
Audit Fees
- VAGO - Audit of Financial Statements

184

204

4

-

188

204

- Other

449

344

-

17

449

361

78,381

73,347

28,828

29,443

107,209

102,790

Ex-Gratia Payments
Total Other Expenses from Continuing Operations
Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Employee Expenses
- Salaries & Wages

-

-

424

461

424

461

Total Employee Expenses

-

-

424

461

424

461

Total Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income

-

-

424

461

424

461

Impairment of Financial Assets
- Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

-

-

140

-

140

-

Total Impairment of Assets

-

-

140

-

140

-

Depreciation & Amortisation

-

-

51,087

49,988

51,087

49,988

Total

-

-

51,087

49,988

51,087

49,988

775,307

720,889

107,269

108,438

882,576

829,327

Total Expenses

CONSOLIDATED
HSA

HSA

H&CI

H&CI

Total

Total

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

484,139

441,932

21,098

22,431

505,237

464,363

6,956

5,006

-

-

6,956

5,006

410

409

98

23

508

432

13,058

13,572

447

-

13,505

13,572

42,970

40,133

1,680

1,641

44,650

41,774

547,533

501,052

23,323

24,095

570,856

525,147

1,989

1,727

3

29

1,992

1,756

6,908

5,798

-

-

6,908

5,798

4,187

4,323

1,444

1,594

5,631

5,917

13,084

11,848

1,447

1,623

14,531

13,471

28,438

45,509

4

2

28,442

45,511

15,570

16,724

-

-

15,570

16,724

69,351

50,076

781

539

70,132

50,615

15,431

15,149

1,774

2,643

17,205

17,792

7,519

7,184

292

432

7,811

7,616

136,309

134,642

2,851

3,616

139,160

138,258

7,380

6,126

273

224

7,653

6,350

6,150

8,477

304

228

6,454

8,705

10,317

7,853

1

-

10,318

7,853

1,232

1,277

-

-

1,232

1,277

7,560

7,168

1,283

1,346

8,843

8,514

7,690

7,836

132

158

7,822

7,994

1,891

2,086

5

-

1,896

2,086

1,384

1,555

106

-

1,490

1,555

5,429

5,607

1,497

1,295

6,926

6,902

-

-

21,829

21,278

21,829

21,278

28,715

24,813

9,091

10,617

37,806

35,431

184

204

4

2

188

206

449

344

-

26

449

370

78,381

73,347

34,525

35,174

112,906

108,520

-

-

424

461

424

461

-

-

424

461

424

461

-

-

424

461

424

461

-

-

140

-

140

-

-

-

140

-

140

-

-

-

51,121

50,016

51,121

50,016

-

-

51,121

50,016

51,121

50,016

775,307

720,889

113,831

114,985

889,138

835,874
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Note 3a: Analysis of Expenses by Source
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(Based on the consolidated view)
Admitted Outpatients
Patients

EDS Ambulatory

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged
Care

Other

Total

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

Services Supported by Health Services
Agreement
Employee Expenses
141,867

4,895

21,161

28,609

113,517

9,714

2,222

162,154

484,139

WorkCover Premium

Salaries & Wages

2,038

70

304

411

1,631

140

32

2,330

6,956

Departure Packages

120

4

18

24

96

8

2

138

410

Long Service Leave

3,826

132

571

772

3,062

262

60

4,373

13,058

12,591

434

1,878

2,539

10,075

862

197

14,394

42,970
1,989

Superannuation
Non Salary Labour Costs
Fees for Visiting Medical Officers

583

20

87

118

466

40

9

666

Agency Costs - Nursing

2,024

70

302

408

1,620

139

32

2,314

6,909

Agency Costs - Other

1,227

42

183

247

982

84

19

1,402

4,186

Drug Supplies

12,895

445

1,924

2,601

10,318

883

202

14,739

44,007

Medical, Surgical Supplies and Prosthesis

20,322

701

3,031

4,098

16,261

1,391

318

23,228

69,350

Pathology Supplies

4,522

156

674

912

3,618

310

71

5,168

15,431

Food Supplies

2,203

76

329

444

1,763

151

35

2,520

7,521

Domestic Services & Supplies

2,162

75

323

436

1,730

148

34

2,472

7,380

Fuel, Light, Power and Water

1,802

62

269

363

1,442

123

28

2,061

6,150

Insurance costs funded by DH

3,023

104

451

610

2,419

207

47

3,455

10,317

Motor Vehicle Expenses

361

12

54

73

289

25

6

412

1,232

Repairs & Maintenance

2,215

76

330

447

1,773

152

35

2,532

7,560

Maintenance Contracts

2,253

78

336

454

1,803

154

35

2,577

7,690

554

19

83

112

443

38

9

633

1,891
1,384

Supplies & Consumables

Other Expenses from Continuing Operations

Patient Transport
Bad & Doubtful Debts

406

14

60

82

325

28

6

463

Lease Expenses

1,591

55

237

321

1,273

109

25

1,818

5,429

Other Administrative Expenses

8,602

299

1,283

1,734

6,881

589

135

9,825

29,348

227,187

7,839

33,888

45,815

181,787

15,557

3,559

259,674

775,307

Employee Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

23,323

23,323

Non Salary Labour Costs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,447

1,447

Supplies & Consumables

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,851

2,851

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

21,829

21,829

Sub-Total Expenses from Services Supported by
Health Services Agreement
Services Supported by Hospital and Community
Initiatives

Other Expenses from Continuing Operations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,696

12,696

Sub-Total Expense from Services Supported by
Hospital and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

62,146

62,146

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Employee Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

424

424

Sub-Total Expenditure using Capital Purpose
Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

424

424

Impairment of Financial Assets (refer note 3)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

140

140

Depreciation & Amortisation (refer note 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

51,121

51,121

Sub-total Expenditure from Services supported
by Health Services Agreement and by Hospital
and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

51,261

51,261

227,187

7,839

33,888

45,815

181,787

15,557

3,559

373,505

889,138

Total Expenses

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 3a: Analysis of Expenses by Source

Admitted Outpatients
Patients

EDS Ambulatory

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged
Care

Other

Total

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

Services Supported by Health Services Agreement
Employee Expenses
130,987

4,353

18,427

24,263

104,244

11,108

2,145

146,405

441,932

WorkCover Premium

Salaries & Wages

1,484

49

209

275

1,181

126

24

1,658

5,006

Departure Packages

121

4

17

22

96

10

2

135

409

Long Service Leave

4,023

134

566

745

3,201

341

66

4,496

13,572

11,895

395

1,673

2,203

9,467

1,009

195

13,296

40,133

Superannuation
Fees for Visiting Medical Officers

61

Non Salary Labour Costs
512

17

72

95

407

43

8

572

1,726

Agency Costs - Nursing

1,719

57

242

318

1,368

146

28

1,921

5,798

Agency Costs - Other

1,281

43

180

237

1,020

109

21

1,432

4,323

Drug Supplies

18,446

613

2,595

3,417

14,680

1,564

302

20,617

62,233

Medical, Surgical Supplies and Prosthesis

14,842

493

2,088

2,749

11,812

1,259

243

16,589

50,076

Pathology Supplies

4,490

149

632

832

3,573

381

74

5,019

15,149

Food Supplies

2,129

71

300

394

1,695

181

35

2,380

7,184

Domestic Services & Supplies

1,816

60

255

336

1,445

154

30

2,030

6,126

Fuel, Light, Power and Water

2,512

84

353

465

1,999

213

41

2,808

8,477

Insurance costs funded by DH

2,328

77

327

431

1,852

197

38

2,602

7,853

Motor Vehicle Expenses

379

13

53

70

301

32

6

423

1,277

Repairs & Maintenance

2,124

71

299

394

1,691

180

35

2,375

7,168

Maintenance Contracts

2,323

77

327

430

1,848

197

38

2,596

7,836

619

21

87

115

492

52

10

691

2,087
1,555

Supplies & Consumables

Other Expenses from Continuing Operations

Patient Transport
Bad & Doubtful Debts

461

15

65

85

367

39

8

515

Lease Expenses

1,662

55

234

308

1,323

141

27

1,857

5,607

Other Administrative Expenses

7,570

252

1,065

1,402

6,024

642

124

8,460

25,539

213,723

7,103

30,066

39,586

170,086

18,124

3,500

238,877

721,065

Employee Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

24,095

24,095

Non Salary Labour Costs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,623

1,623

Supplies & Consumables

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,615

3,615

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

21,278

21,278

Sub-Total Expenses from Services Supported
by Health Services Agreement
Services Supported by Hospital and
Community Initiatives

Other Expenses from Continuing Operations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,722

13,722

Sub-Total Expense from Services Supported by
Hospital and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

64,332

64,332

Expenditure using Capital Purpose Income
Employee Expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

461

461

Sub-Total Expenditure using Capital
Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

461

461

Depreciation & Amortisation (refer note 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

50,016

50,016

Sub-total Expenditure from Services supported
by Health Services Agreement and by Hospital
and Community Initiatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

50,016

50,016

213,723

7,103

30,066

39,586

170,086

18,124

3,500

353,687

835,874

Total Expenses

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

(Based on the consolidated view)

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

62

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

Note 3b: Analysis of Expenses by Internal and Restricted Specific Purpose Funds
for Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives
Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

21,829

21,278

21,829

21,278

71

4,444

71

4,444

Orygen Research Centre

1,569

1,617

1,569

1,617

Mammography Screening Program

3,477

3,052

3,477

3,052

Neurology Foundation

2,051

1,832

2,051

1,832

WHO Reference & Research on Influenza

3,045

2,826

3,045

2,826

RMH Research Directorate

1,069

1,207

1,069

1,207

Medical Oncology

1,334

1,230

1,334

1,230

BioGrid Australia

1,081

2,056

1,081

2,056

988

950

988

950

Car Park

1,968

1,931

1,968

1,931

BMRL

2,285

1,837

2,285

2,285

NHMRC

713

700

713

700

Renal & Endocrinology Services

739

665

739

665

Surgery & Perioperative

349

596

349

596

Clinical Epidemiology

368

399

368

399

ICU - Shared Services

1,308

61

1,308

61

11,117

10,913

11,117

10,465

258

226

258

226

55,619

57,820

55,619

57,820

External Supply Agreements
Private Practice and Other Patient Activities

Cafeteria (Parkville & Royal Park)

Other
Other Activities
Fundraising and Community Support
TOTAL
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Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Depreciation
Buildings

33,078

32,782

33,078

32,782

Plant & Equipment

2,456

4,062

2,460

4,044

Medical Equipment

6,443

3,742

6,443

3,742

Computer Equipments

2,350

2,657

2,350

2,657

Furniture & Fittings

185

160

186

162

Motor Vehicles

381

550

381

550

44,893

43,953

44,898

43,937

Total Depreciation
Amortisation
Leased Assets

284

159

284

159

Intangible Assets

5,910

5,876

5,939

5,920

Total Amortisation

6,194

6,035

6,223

6,079

51,087

49,988

51,121

50,016

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Total Depreciation & Amortisation

Note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand

30

30

30

30

Cash at Bank

33,643

34,264

33,764

35,332

Other
-Patient Trust Monies
TOTAL

899

1,688

899

1,688

34,572

35,982

34,693

37,050

33,673

34,294

33,794

35,362

Represented by:
Cash for Health Service Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement)
Cash for Monies Held in Trust
- Cash at Bank
TOTAL

899

1,688

899

1,688

34,572

35,982

34,693

37,050
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Note 4: Depreciation and Amortisation
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Note 6: Receivables

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

CURRENT
Contractual
Inter Hospital Debtors

8,224

6,337

9,996

6,337

Trade Debtors

11,585

13,583

11,255

13,271

Patient Fees

13,845

16,250

13,845

16,250

129

164

129

164

11,865

6,884

11,911

6,941

Accrued Investment Income
Accrued Revenue - Other
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Trade Debtors
Patient Fees

(420)

(705)

(420)

(705)

(2,119)

(2,241)

(2,119)

(2,241)

43,109

40,272

44,597

40,017

Statutory
GST Receivable

3,333

2,628

3,340

2,638

3,333

2,628

3,340

2,638

46,442

42,900

47,937

42,655

11,599

10,644

11,599

10,644

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

11,599

10,644

11,599

10,644

TOTAL RECEIVABLES

58,041

53,544

59,536

53,299

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES
NON CURRENT
Statutory
Long Service Leave - Department of Health

a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful contractual receivables

Balance at beginning of year
Amounts written off during the year

2,946

2,518

2,946

2,518

(1,489)

(1,555)

(1,489)

(1,555)

Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in net result

1,082

1,983

1,082

1,983

Balance at end of year

2,539

2,946

2,539

2,946

(b) Ageing analysis of receivables
Please refer to note 18(b) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
Please refer to note 18(b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

2011
$’000

Specific Purpose Fund

Capital Fund

Parent Entity

Consolidated

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

5,302

NON CURRENT
Other
Shares

-

-

5,841

4,376

24

22

5,865

4,397

5,865

4,310

4,310

-

-

-

-

4,310

4,310

-

-

27

27

-

-

-

-

27

27

27

27

156

70

-

-

-

-

156

70

-

-

50

-

-

-

-

-

50

-

50

-

Total Non Current

4,543

4,407

5,841

4,376

24

22

10,408

8,804

5,942

5,329

TOTAL

4,543

4,407

5,841

4,376

24

22

10,408

8,804

5,942

5,329

Investments in Evivar Medical P/L
Investments in Australian Technology Fund P/L
Interest in JV - VCCCL
Other Interest - Nexpep P/L

Represented by:
Health Service Investments

4,543

4,407

5,841

4,376

24

22

10,408

8,804

5,942

5,329

TOTAL

4,543

4,407

5,841

4,376

24

22

10,408

8,804

5,942

5,329

(b) Ageing analysis of other financial assets
Please refer to note 18(b) for the ageing analysis of investments and other financial assets
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from investments and other financial assets
Please refer to note 18(b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from investments and other financial assets

Note 8: Inventories
Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2,576

2,834

2,576

2,834

2,433

2,458

2,433

2,458

72

69

72

69

2,628

2,673

2,628

2,673

Pharmaceuticals*
At cost
Supply Store*
At cost
Aids and Appliance*
At cost
Medical and Surgical Lines*
At cost
Pathology*
At cost
TOTAL INVENTORIES

985

966

985

966

8,694

9,000

8,694

9,000

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

* All categories are valued at the lower of Cost and/or Net Realisable Value.

Note 9: Other Assets

Prepayments

1,410

1,002

1,419

1,002

CURRENT

1,410

1,002

1,419

1,002

TOTAL

1,410

1,002

1,419

1,002
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Note 7: Investments and Other Financial Assets

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

66 Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

Note 10: Property, Plant & Equipment

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

136,570

136,570

136,570

136,570

-

-

-

-

136,570

136,570

136,570

136,570

10,800

7,135

10,800

7,135

356,412

350,869

356,412

350,869

65,860

32,782

65,860

32,782

2,586

1,632

2,586

1,632

583

299

583

299

303,355

326,555

303,355

326,555

Land
Land at Fair Value
Less Impairment
Total Land
Buildings
Buildings Under Construction at cost
Buildings at Fair Value
Less Acc’d Depreciation
Leasehold Improvements at cost
Less Acc’d Amortisation
Total Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at Fair Value

21,756

20,049

21,791

20,084

Less Acc’d Depreciation

13,144

10,917

13,162

10,934

8,612

9,132

8,629

9,150

Total Plant and Equipment
Medical Equipment
Medical Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc’d Depreciation
Total Medical Equipment

78,929

72,166

78,929

72,166

40,241

35,870

40,241

35,870

38,688

36,296

38,688

36,296

Computer Equipment
Computer Equipment at Fair Value

18,313

17,040

18,313

17,040

Less Acc’d Depreciation

15,048

13,279

15,048

13,279

Total Computer Equipment

3,265

3,761

3,265

3,761

1,759

Furniture & Fittings
Furniture & Fittings at Fair Value

1,992

1,752

1,998

Less Acc’d Depreciation

858

673

859

674

Total Computer Equipment

1,134

1,079

1,139

1,085

2,585

2,193

2,585

2,193

770

540

770

540

1,815

1,653

1,815

1,653

493,439

515,046

493,461

515,070

Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicle Assets at Fair Value
Less Acc’d Depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles
TOTAL

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Land

Balance at 1 July 2009

Buildings

Buildings
WIP

Buildings
Plant &
Medical Computer
Imps Equipment Equipment Equipment
L/Hold

Furniture
& Fittings

Motor
Vehicles

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

136,570

296,987

47,391

1,421

11,553

30,851

3,253

1,020

2,096

531,142
27,783

Additions

-

838

12,048

71

1,882

9,661

2,888

227

168

Assets transferred as Capital Contributions

-

-

740

-

-

-

-

-

-

740

Disposals

-

-

-

-

(79)

(474)

-

-

(61)

(614)

Net Transfers between Classes

-

53,044

(53,044)

-

(162)

-

277

-

-

115

Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4)

-

(32,782)

-

(159)

(4,044)

(3,742)

(2,657)

(162)

(550)

(44,096)

Balance at 1 July 2010

136,570

318,087

7,135

1,333

9,150

36,296

3,761

1,085

1,653

515,070

Additions

-

1,352

7,394

405

1,955

9,051

1,770

240

807

22,974

Assets transferred as Capital Contributions

-

-

1,117

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,117

Disposals

-

-

-

-

(16)

(216)

-

-

(264)

(496)

Net Transfers between Classes

-

4,191

(4,846)

549

-

-

84

-

-

(22)

Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4)

-

(33,078)

-

(284)

(2,460)

(6,443)

(2,350)

(186)

(381)

(45,182)

136,570

290,552

10,800

2,003

8,629

38,688

3,265

1,139

1,815

493,461

Balance at 30 June 2011

1. Fair Value Assessment
In accordance with FRD103D Non Current Physical Assets, fair value assessment was conducted on 30 June 2011.
That assessment determined that depreciated replacement cost was not materially different from existing carrying value.
Motor Vehicles: A reliable fair market value was obtained from Red Book.
2. Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of the Melbourne Health’s land and buildings was perfomed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings.
The valuation, which confirms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2009.
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset for the consolidated entity at the beginning and end of the previous
and current financial year is set out below.
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Note 11: Intangible Assets

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

13,143

11,929

18,665

17,200

8,804

5,369

8,993

5,501

4,339

6,560

9,672

11,699

70

70

70

70

-

-

-

-

70

70

70

70

Software Costs Capitalised

12,363

10,629

12,363

10,629

Less Acc’d Amortisation

10,075

7,868

10,075

7,868

2,288

2,761

2,288

2,761

6,697

9,391

12,030

14,530

Total

Capitalised Costs
Less Acc’d Amortisation
Post Office License
Less Acc’d Amortisation

Total Written Down Value

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year:

Balance at 1 July 2009
Additions

Capitalised
Costs

Software Costs
Capitalised

Post Office
License

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

12,271

2,769

70

15,110

3,591

1,749

-

5,340

Amortisation (note 4)

(4,163)

(1,757)

-

(5,920)

Balance at 1 July 2010

11,699

2,761

70

14,530

Additions

1,437

2,005

-

3,442

Disposals

-

(3)

-

(3)

(3,464)

(2,475)

-

(5,939)

9,672

2,288

70

12,030

Amortisation (note 4)
Balance at 30 June 2011

Impairment Test
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested annually for impairment.
An independent valuation of Evivar Medical Pty Ltd confirms the carrying value and as such no impairment adjustment is required.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Balance at Beginning of Period

-

838

-

838

Disposals and Property Held for Sale

-

(838)

-

(838)

Balance at End of Period

-

-

-

-

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

37,184

Note 13: Payables

CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Creditors

45,055

37,184

45,055

Income in Advance

1,379

3,543

1,379

3,543

Accrued Expenses

13,724

14,905

13,724

14,905

Salary Packaging

1,915

2,357

1,915

2,357

Other

4,092

5,492

5,286

6,365

66,165

63,481

67,359

64,354

Statutory
GST Payable

780

789

798

789

780

789

798

789

TOTAL CURRENT

66,945

64,270

68,157

65,143

TOTAL

66,945

64,270

68,157

65,143

(a) Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 18(c) for the ageing analysis of contractual payables
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from payables
Please refer to note 18(d) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables
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Note 14: Provisions

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Current Provisions
Employee Benefits
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months

53,794

51,373

53,794

51,373

- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months

59,338

51,509

59,338

51,509

113,132

102,882

113,132

102,882

- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months

5,917

5,651

5,917

5,651

- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months

6,527

5,666

6,527

5,666

12,444

11,317

12,444

11,317

125,576

114,199

125,576

114,199

17,486

16,713

17,486

16,723

1,924

1,838

1,924

1,839

19,410

18,551

19,410

18,562

144,986

132,750

144,986

132,761

Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs

Total Current Provisions
Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs
Total Non-Current Provisions
Total Provisions
(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional LSL Entitlement

63,302

57,620

63,302

57,620

Annual Leave Entitlements

45,126

43,185

45,126

43,185

Accrued Wages and Salaries

13,985

10,182

13,985

10,182

2,226

2,373

2,226

2,373

Substitution Leave

607

671

607

671

Four Clear Days

330

168

330

168

19,410

18,551

19,410

18,562

144,986

132,750

144,986

132,761

76,171

68,497

76,182

68,497

Accrued Days Off

Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
(b) Movement in provisions
Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year
Provision made during the year
- Revaluations

(871)

(398)

(871)

(398)

- Expense recognising Employee Service

14,377

13,970

14,366

13,981

Settlement made during the year

(6,965)

(5,898)

(6,965)

(5,898)

Balance at end of year

82,712

76,171

82,712

76,182

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

CURRENT
Monies Held in Trust*
- Patient Monies Held in Trust*

355

316

355

316

- Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)*

544

1,372

544

1,372

Total Current

899

1,688

899

1,688

Total Other Liabilities

899

1,688

899

1,688

* Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash Assets (refer to Note 5)

899

1,688

899

1,688

TOTAL

899

1,688

899

1,688

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

144,347

144,771

144,347

144,771

-

(363)

-

(363)

(214)

(61)

(214)

(61)

144,133

144,347

144,133

144,347

135,257

Note 16: Reserves

(a) Reserves
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus 1
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
- Investment Property
- Plant and Equipment/Motor Vehicle
Balance at the end of the reporting period*
* Represented by:
- Land

135,257

135,257

135,257

- Buildings

7,780

7,780

7,780

7,780

- Plant and Equipment/Motor Vehicle

1,096

1,310

1,096

1,310

144,133

144,347

144,133

144,347

Financial Assets Available-for-Sale Revaluation Surplus 2
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

466

-

578

-

Valuation gain/(loss) recognised

549

466

549

578

1,015

466

1,127

578

Balance at end of the reporting period

(1) The property, plant & equipment and motor vehicle asset revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant & equipment and motor vehicle.
(2) The financial assets available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. Where a revalued financial asset is sold
that portion of the reserve which relates to the financial asset, and is effectively realised, is recognised in the net result. Where a revalued financial asset is impaired
that portion of the reserve which relates to that financial asset is recognised in net result.
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Note 16: Reserves (continued)

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

38,646

37,427

44,449

42,489

3,960

1,219

3,959

1,960

42,606

38,646

48,408

44,449

187,754

183,459

193,668

189,374

Restricted Specific Purpose Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfer to and from Restricted Specific Purpose Reserve
Balance at the end of the reporting period
Total Reserves
(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

304,943

304,943

304,943

304,943

Balance at the end of the reporting period

304,943

304,943

304,943

304,943

(c) Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

(54,341)

(17,363)

(61,338)

(23,405)

Net Result for the Year

(33,965)

(35,722)

(34,171)

(35,966)

Transfers to and from Reserve
Balance at the end of the reporting period

(3,960)

(1,256)

(3,966)

(1,967)

(92,266)

(54,341)

(99,475)

(61,338)

Minority Interest
Total Equity at end of financial year

-

-

2,597

2,709

400,431

434,061

401,733

435,688

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

(33,965)

(35,722)

(34,171)

(35,966)

51,087

49,988

51,121

50,016

140

(424)

140

(424)

(214)

-

(214)

-

(64)

-

(64)

-

(407)

428

(407)

428

Note 17: Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net
Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

Net Result for the Year
Depreciation & Amortisation
Revaluation Reserve gain recognised on Non-Financial Asset
Impairment of Financial Assets
Reversal of impairment of Financial Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Change in Inventories
Net (Gain)/Loss from Sale of Plant and Equipment
Net (Gain)/Loss from Sale of Investments

306

(481)

306

(481)

(110)

(70)

(110)

(70)

-

50

-

50
381

Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables

(4,202)

(610)

(5,830)

(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments

(408)

944

(416)

953

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables

2,093

5,427

3,177

6,400

Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits

12,022

4,556

12,022

4,645

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

26,278

24,086

25,554

25,932

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

(a) Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies

> Investment in Equities and Managed
Investment Schemes

Melbourne Health’s principal financial
instruments comprise of:

> Payables (excluding statutory payables)

> Cash Assets

> Patient Trust Accounts
> Accommodation Bonds

> Term Deposits
> Receivables (excluding statutory
receivables)

Details of the significant accounting
policies and methods adopted, including
the criteria for recognition, the basis

of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are
recognised, with respect to each class
of financial asset, financial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in note
1 to the financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial
instruments is to prudentially manage
Melbourne Health’s financial risks within
the Government policy parameters.

Categorisation of financial instruments
Carrying
Amount

Carrying
Amount

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

34,693

37,050

Loans and Receivables

44,597

40,017

4,918

4,398

Available for Sale - Hybrid Securities

947

904

Available for Sale - Investment in ATF

27

27

Available for Sale - Investment General (Nexpep Pty Ltd)

50

-

85,232

82,396

Financial Assets

Available for Sale - Shares

Total Financial Assets (i)
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost - Payables

67,359

64,354

At amortised cost - Accommodation Bonds

544

1,372

At amortised cost - Patient Trust Accounts

355

316

68,258

66,042

Carrying
Amount

Carrying
Amount

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,590

2,133

Available for Sale - Shares

-

-

Available for Sale - Term deposit

1,227

36

Total Financial Assets

2,817

2,169

Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

-

-

Held-for-Trading at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

-

-

At Amortised Cost

-

-

Total Financial Liabilities

-

-

Total Financial Liabilities (ii)
(i) The total amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit recoverable)
(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes payables)
Interest Income on financial instruments by category

Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
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Note 18: Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Credit Risk
Melbourne Health’s exposure to credit risk and effective weighted average interest rate by ageing periods is set out in the following table.
For interest rates applicable to each class of asset refer to individual notes to the financial statements.
Ageing analysis of Financial Asset as at 30 June

2011

Consolidated
Carrying
Amount

Not Past
Due and Not
Impaired

$’000
34,693

Past Due But Not Impaired

Impaired
Financial
Assets

Less than
1 Month

1-3
Months

3 months
- 1 Year

1-5
Years

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

34,693

-

-

-

-

-

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
- Trade Debtors

10,835

8,869

985

645

336

-

-

- Patient Debtors

11,726

5,127

1,878

1,073

3,648

-

-

- Inter Hospital Debtors

9,996

8,021

1,975

-

-

-

-

Other Accrued Revenue

12,040

12,040

-

-

-

-

-

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities

4,918

4,918

-

-

-

-

-

- Hybrid Securities

947

947

-

-

-

-

-

- Investment in ATF

27

27

-

-

-

-

-

- Investment General (Nexpep Pty Ltd)

50

50

-

-

-

-

-

85,232

74,692

4,838

1,718

3,984

-

-

37,050

37,050

-

-

-

-

-

- Trade Debtors

12,566

10,136

1,065

984

381

-

628

- Patient Debtors

14,009

5,937

1,992

1,161

4,919

-

208

- Inter Hospital Debtors

6,337

5,409

928

-

-

-

-

Other Accrued Revenue

7,105

7,105

-

-

-

-

-

4,398

4,398

-

-

-

-

-

904

904

-

-

-

-

-

Total Financial Assets
2010
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
- Investment in ATF
Total Financial Assets

27

27

-

-

-

-

-

82,396

70,966

3,985

2,145

5,300

-

836
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(c) Liquidity Risk
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Melbourne Health’s financial liabilities.
For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.
Maturity analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June
Carrying
Amount

Contractual
Cash Flows

$’000

Payables - Trade Creditors
Payables - Other Accruals

2011

Maturity Dates
Less than 1
Month

1-3 Months

3 months - 1
Year

1-5 Years

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

52,256

52,256

26,270

24,612

1,374

-

15,103

15,103

15,103

-

-

544

Financial Liabilities

75

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds

544

544

-

-

-

- Patient Trusts

355

355

355

-

-

-

68,258

68,258

41,728

24,612

1,374

544

Payables - Trade Creditors

49,449

49,449

31,162

17,114

1,173

-

Payables - Other Accruals

14,905

14,905

14,905

-

-

-

1,372

1,372

-

-

-

1,372

316

316

316

-

-

-

66,042

66,042

46,383

17,114

1,173

1,372

Total Financial Liabilities
2010
Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

(d) Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Equity Price Risk

Melbourne Health’s exposures to market
risk are primarily through interest rate risk
with only insignificant exposure to foreign
currency and other price risks. Objectives,
policies and processes used to manage
each of these risks are disclosed in the
paragraph below.

Exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily through Melbourne Health’s
cash and cash equivalents which have a
floating interest rate (profit impact) and
its term deposit which has a fixed interest
rate (equity impact). Minimisation of risk is
achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate
short term deposits when cash flow allows.
Melbourne Health does not have any
interest bearing liabilities.

Melbourne Health is exposed to equity
price risk arising from its portfolio of
shares and hybrid securities, which are
used as cash backing for Special Purpose
Funds and other external liabilities such
as long service leave. Minimisation of risk
is reflected in investment strategies as
follows: Share Portfolio: Investing within
Investment Committee approved asset
classes with the total investment portfolio
risk profile higher than the ASX200.
Hybrid Securities: To ensure regular
income streams and low equity volatility
by investing in high credit quality,
security backed equities.

Currency Risk
Melbourne Health is exposed to
insignificant foreign currency risk through
its payables relating to purchases of
supplies and consumables from overseas.
This is because of a limited amount
of purchases denominated in foreign
currencies and a short timeframe
between commitment and settlement.
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Note 18: Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June
Interest Rate Exposure
Weighted Average
Effective Interest

Carrying
Amount

Fixed
Interest Rate

Variable
Interest Rate

Non-Interest
Bearing

Rate (%)

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

4.48

34,693

-

34,693

-

- Trade Debtors

10,835

-

-

10,835

- Patient Debtors

11,726

-

-

11,726

- Inter Hospital Debtors

9,996

-

-

9,996

Other Accrued Revenue

12,040

-

-

12,040

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities

4,918

-

-

4,918

- Hybrid Securities

5.65

947

-

-

947

- Investment in ATF

27

-

-

27

- Investment General (Nexpep Pty Ltd)

50

-

-

50

85,232

-

34,693

50,539

Payables - Trade Creditors

52,256

-

-

52,256

Payables - Other Accruals

15,103

-

-

15,103

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds

544

-

-

544

- Patient Trusts

355

-

-

355

68,258

-

-

68,258

37,050

-

37,050

-

- Trade Debtors

12,566

-

-

12,566

- Patient Debtors

14,009

-

-

14,009

- Inter Hospital Debtors

6,337

-

-

6,337

Other Accrued Revenue

7,105

-

-

7,105

2010
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

3.55

Receivables

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities

4,398

-

-

4,398

- Hybrid Securities

3.76

904

-

-

904

- Investment in ATF

27

-

-

27

82,396

-

37,050

45,346

Payables - Trade Creditors

49,449

-

-

49,449

Payables - Other Accruals

14,905

-

-

14,905
1,372

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts

1,372

-

-

316

-

-

316

66,042

-

-

66,042

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis
Taking into account past performance,
future expectations, economic forecasts,
and management’s knowledge and
experience of the financial markets,
Melbourne Health believes the following
movements are ‘reasonably possible’ over
the next 12 months (Base rates are sourced
from the Reserve Bank of Australia).

The following table discloses the impact
on net operating result and equity for each
category of financial instrument held by
Melbourne Health at year end as presented
to key management personnel, if changes
in the relevant risk occur.

> A shift of +0.75% and -0.75% in
market interest rates (AUD) from
year-end rates of 4.75%;
> A parallel shift of +12.00% and
-12.00% in equity rate return
reflecting the standard deviation over
the long term return of the ASX200
Accumulation Index.

Carrying
Amount

Interest Rate Risk
-0.75%

Other Price Risk

+0.75%

-12.00%

12.00%

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

34,693

(260)

(260)

260

260

-

-

-

-

- Trade Debtors

10,835

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Patient Debtors

11,726

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Inter Hospital Debtors

9,996

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Accrued Revenue

12,040

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities

4,918

-

-

-

-

(590)

(590)

590

590

- Hybrid Securities

947

-

-

-

-

(114)

(114)

114

114

- Investment in ATF

27

-

-

-

-

(3)

(3)

3

3

- Investment General (Nexpep Pty Ltd)

50

-

-

-

-

(6)

(6)

6

6

Payables - Trade Creditors

52,256

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Payables - Other Accruals

15,103

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds

544

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Patient Trusts

355

(260)

(260)

260

260

(713)

(713)

713

713

37,050

(1,810)

(1,810)

1,810

1,810

-

-

-

-

- Trade Debtors

12,566

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Patient Debtors

14,009

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Inter Hospital Debtors

6,337

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Accrued Revenue

7,105

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2010
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities

4,398

-

-

-

-

(792)

(792)

792

792

- Hybrid Securities

904

-

-

-

-

(163)

(163)

163

163

- Investment in ATF

27

-

-

-

-

(5)

(5)

5

5

Payables - Trade Creditors

49,449

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Payables - Other Accruals

14,905

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts

1,372

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

316

(1,810)

(1,810)

1,810

1,810

(960)

(960)

960

960
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Note 18: Financial Instruments (continued)

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 18: Financial Instruments (continued)

The fair values and net fair values of
financial instrument assets and liabilities
are determined as follows:

• Level 3 - the fair value is determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

• Level 1 - the fair value of financial
instrument with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference
to quoted market prices;

The financial assets include holdings
in unlisted shares. Fair value of these is
determined by projecting future cash
inflows from expected future dividends
and subsequent disposal of the securities.

• Level 2 - the fair value is determined
using inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the financial asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Melbourne Health considers that the
carrying amount of financial instrument
assets and liabilities recorded in
the financial statements to be a fair
approximation of their fair values,

(e) Fair Value

because of the short-term nature of the
financial instruments and the expectation
that they will be paid in full.
The following table shows that the fair
values of all the contractual financial
assets and liabilities are the same as the
carrying amounts.

Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
Consolidated
Carrying Amount

Fair value

Consolidated
Carrying Amount

Fair value

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

34,693

34,693

37,050

37,050

- Trade Debtors

10,835

10,835

12,566

12,566

- Patient Debtors

11,726

11,726

14,009

14,009

- Inter Hospital Debtors

9,996

9,996

6,337

6,337

Other Accrued Revenue

12,040

12,040

7,105

7,105

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities

4,918

4,918

4,398

4,398

- Hybrid Securities

947

947

904

904

- Investment in ATF

27

27

27

27

- Investment General (Nexpep Pty Ltd)

50

50

-

-

85,232

85,232

82,396

82,396

Payables - Trade Creditors

52,256

52,256

49,449

49,449

Payables - Other Accruals

15,103

15,103

14,905

14,905
1,372

Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds

544

544

1,372

- Patient Trusts

355

355

316

316

68,258

68,258

66,042

66,042

Total Financial Liabilities

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Financial assets measured at fair value
Carrying Amount
as at 30 June
2011

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

$’000

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

100

Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss
Available for sale financial assets
- Shares

4,918

4,678

140

- Hybrid Securities

947

947

-

-

- Investment in ATF

27

-

-

27

- Investment General (Nexpep Pty Ltd)

50

-

-

50

5,942

5,625

140

177

-
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Note 18: Financial Instruments (continued)

2010
Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss
Available for Sale Financial Assets
- Shares

4,398

4,398

-

- Hybrid Securities

904

904

-

-

- Investment in ATF

27

-

27

-

5,329

5,302

27

-

Total Financial Assets

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 19: Commitments for Expenditure

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Land and Buildings

34,154

32,656

34,154

32,656

Plant and Equipment

17,584

4,101

17,584

4,101

Total capital expenditure commitments

51,738

36,757

51,738

36,757

31,508

25,949

31,508

25,949

2,646

6,707

2,646

6,707

-

-

-

-

34,154

32,656

34,154

32,656

4,101

Capital Expenditure Commitments
Payable:

Land and Buildings
Not later than one year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total
Plant & Equipment
Not later than one year

17,584

4,101

17,584

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

-

-

-

-

Later than 5 years

-

-

-

-

Total

17,584

4,101

17,584

4,101

TOTAL

51,738

36,757

51,738

36,757

51,523

57,280

51,523

57,280

-

-

-

-

51,523

57,280

51,523

57,280

Not later than one year

22,758

18,679

22,758

18,679

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

28,140

36,848

28,140

36,848

625

1,753

625

1,753

51,523

57,280

51,523

57,280

103,261

94,037

103,261

94,037

9,387

8,549

9,387

8,549

93,874

85,488

93,874

85,488

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date:
Operating Leases
Finance Leases
Total lease commitments
Operating Leases
Non-cancellable

Later than 5 years
Sub Total
Total Commitments for Expenditure (inclusive of GST)
less GST recoverable from the Australian Tax Office
Total Commitments for Expenditure (exclusive of GST)
All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.

Note 20: Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Details of estimates of maximum amounts of Contingent Assets or Contingent Liabilities are as follows:

Contingent Assets
Quantifiable
Guarantees and Indemnities

-

-

-

-

Department of Health Capital Funding - PCMS

2,000

2,500

2,000

2,500

Total Quantifiable Contingent Assets

2,000

2,500

2,000

2,500

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Acute Mental Health
2011
$’000

2011
$’000

RAC

Aged
Care

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

Other HSA

Hospital
Community
Initiatives

Unallocated

Consolidated

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

2011
$’000

REVENUE
External Segment Revenue

331,111

191,643

16,436

3,780

273,486

18,533

17,161

852,150

Total Revenue

331,111

191,643

16,436

3,780

273,486

18,533

17,161

852,150

EXPENSES
External Segment Expenses

(345,483)

(199,961)

(17,149)

(3,944)

(285,357)

(19,338)

(17,906)

(889,138)

Total Expenses

(345,483)

(199,961)

(17,149)

(3,944)

(285,357)

(19,338)

(17,906)

(889,138)

(14,372)

(8,318)

(713)

(164)

(11,871)

(805)

(745)

(36,988)

Net Result from ordinary activities
Interest Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,817

2,817

(14,372)

(8,318)

(713)

(164)

(11,871)

(805)

2,072

(34,171)

Segment Assets

239,265

138,484

11,877

2,731

197,624

13,392

12,402

615,775

Total Assets

239,265

138,484

11,877

2,731

197,624

13,392

12,402

615,775

Net Result for Year
OTHER INFORMATION

Segment Liabilities

(83,168)

(48,137)

(4,128)

(949)

(68,694)

(4,655)

(4,311)

(214,042)

Total Liabilities

(83,168)

(48,137)

(4,128)

(949)

(68,694)

(4,655)

(4,311)

(214,042)

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
Depreciation & amortisation expense

10,274

5,947

510

117

8,486

575

533

26,442

(19,862)

(11,497)

(986)

(227)

(16,407)

(1,112)

(1,030)

(51,121)

RAC

Aged
Care

Other HSA

Hospital
Community
Initiatives

Unallocated

Consolidated

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010
$’000

2010

Acute Mental Health
2010
$’000

2010
$’000

REVENUE
External Segment Revenue

309,969

179,406

15,387

3,538

256,023

17,350

16,065

797,739

Total Revenue

309,969

179,406

15,387

3,538

265,023

17,350

16,065

797,739

EXPENSES
External Segment Expenses

(324,780)

(187,979)

(16,122)

(3,708)

(268,257)

(18,179)

(16,833)

(835,857)

Total Expenses

(324,780)

(187,979)

(16,122)

(3,708)

(268,257)

(18,179)

(16,833)

(835,857)

(14,811)

(8,572)

(735)

(169)

(12,233)

(829)

(768)

(38,118)

Interest Expense

-

-

-

-

-

-

(17)

(17)

Interest Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,169

2,169

(14,811)

(8,572)

(735)

(169)

(12,233)

(829)

1,384

(35,966)

Segment Assets

246,844

142,870

12,253

2,818

203,884

13,817

12,794

635,280

Total Assets

246,844

142,870

12,253

2,818

203,884

13,817

12,794

635,280

Net Result from ordinary activities

Net Result for Year
OTHER INFORMATION

Segment Liabilities

(77,553)

(44,887)

(3,850)

(885)

(64,056)

(4,341)

(4,020)

(199,592)

Total Liabilities

(77,553)

(44,887)

(3,850)

(885)

(64,056)

(4,341)

(4,020)

(199,592)

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
Depreciation & amortisation expense

12,870

7,449

639

147

10,630

720

667

33,123

(19,434)

(11,248)

(965)

(222)

(16,052)

(1,088)

(1,007)

(50,016)
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Note 21: Segment Reporting
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Note 21 : Segment Reporting (continued)

The major products/services from which
the above segments derive revenue are:

Acute
Admitted Patient Services (Admitted
Patients) comprises all recurrent health
revenue/expenditure on admitted patient
services, where services are delivered in:
> Public hospitals
> Free standing day hospital facilities
> Palliative care facilities
> Rehabilitation facilities
> Alcohol and drug treatment units
> Hospitals specialising in dental services,
hearing and ophthalmic aids
This category also includes recurrent health
revenue/expenditure on admitted patient
services where service delivery is contracted
to private hospitals or treatment facilities,
as well as recurrent funds for scope
patient transport, training, research and
telemedicine where it relates to admitted
patient services.
Outpatient Services (Outpatients)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on public hospital type
outpatient services, where services are
delivered in:
> Public hospital outpatient clinics
> Free standing day hospital facilities
> Rehabilitation facilities
> Alcohol and drug treatment units
> Outpatient clinics specialising in
ophthalmic aids or palliative care
This category includes recurrent health
revenue/expenditure for scope patient
transport, training, research and telemedicine
where it relates to outpatient services.
Emergency Department Services (EDS)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on emergency department
services that are available free of charge
to public patients.

> This category includes recurrent
health revenue/expenditure for scope
patient transport, training, research
and telemedicine where it relates to
emergency department services.
Off Campus, Ambulatory Services
(Ambulatory) comprises all recurrent
health revenue/expenditure on public
hospital type services, provided under
the following agreements:

RAC
> RAC comprises of residential high care
and low care facilities.

Aged Care
> Aged Care comprises revenue/expenditure
for Home and Community Care (HACC)
programs, Allied Health, Aged Care
Assessment and support services.

> Services that are provided or received
by hospitals (or area health services)
but are delivered/received outside a
hospital campus

Other HSA

> Services which have moved from a
hospital to a community setting since
June 1998

> Public Health Services including
Laboratory testing, Blood Borne Viruses/
Sexually Transmitted Infections clinical
services, Koori Health liaison officers,
immunisation and screening services.

> Services which fall within the agreed
scope of inclusions under the new system,
which have never been delivered within
hospitals i.e. in rural/remote regions
This category includes recurrent
health revenue/expenditure for scope
patient transport, training, research
and telemedicine where it relates to
off-campus, ambulatory services.

Mental Health
Mental Health Services (Mental Health)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on specialised mental health
services (child and adolescent, general and
adult, community and forensic) managed
or funded by the state or territory health
administrations, and includes:
> Admitted patient services (including
forensic mental health)
> Outpatient services
> Emergency department services (where
it is possible to separate emergency
department mental health services)
> Community-based services
> Residential and ambulatory services
This category includes recurrent health
expenditure for scope patient transport,
training, research and telemedicine where
it relates to mental health services.

Other HSA (other) comprises revenue/
expenditure for services not separately
classified above, including:

> Drugs Services including drug
withdrawal, counselling and the
needle and syringe program.
> Disability Services including aids
and equipment and flexible support
packages to people with a disability.
> Community Care programs including
sexual assault support, early parenting
services, parenting assessment and
skills development, and various
support services.

Hospital & Community
Initiatives
> Health and Community Initiatives.

Unallocated
> Clinical support, infrastructure
and corporate
>Business Units; Diagnostics laboratory
and medical imaging services.

Geographical Segment
Melbourne Health operates predominantly
in Melbourne, Victoria. More than 90%
of revenue, net surplus from ordinary
activities and segment assets relate to
operations in Melbourne, Victoria.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Ownership Interest
Name of Entity

Principal Activity

2011
%

2010
%

Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre Limited

Cancer Research & Treatment

14.29

16.67

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Melbourne Health’s interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations and
assets is detailed below. The amounts are included in the financial statements and consolidated
financial statements under their respective asset categories:

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

84

95

4

21

Other Current Assets

4

-

Total Current Assets

92

116

Property, Plant and Equipment

5

5

Total Non Current Assets

5

5

97

121

2011
$’000

2010
$’000

Non Current Assets

Total Assets
Melbourne Health’s interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled
operations and assets is detailed below:

Revenues
Grants

199

162

Other - Interest

4

1

Other - Revenue

3

-

206

163

(66)

(26)

Total Revenue
Expenses
Employee Benefits
Depreciation
Research

(1)

(2)

(22)

(19)

Supplies and Services

(100)

(50)

Total Expenses

(189)

(97)

17

66

Profit
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
(No contingent liabilities and capital commitments arising from the interest in joint ventures).

83 Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

Note 22: Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets
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Note 23a: Responsible Persons Disclosures

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following disclosures are made regarding
responsible persons for the reporting period.

Period
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable Daniel Andrews, MLA, Minister for Health

01/07/2010 - 02/12/2010

The Honourable David Davis, MLA, Minister for Health and Ageing

02/12/2010 - 30/06/2011

The Honourable Mary Woodridge, MLA, Minister for Mental Health

02/12/2010 - 30/06/2011

Governing Boards
Prof James Angus

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Mrs Jane Bell

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Mr Phillip Bain

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Mr Robert Doyle

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Mr Michael Gorton

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Prof David Hayward

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Ms Penelope Hutchinson

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Mr William Mountford

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Ms Catherine Redwood

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Accountable Officers
Ms Linda Sorrell

1/07/2010 - 30/06/2011

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands;
Parent

Consolidated

2011
No.

2010
No.

2011
No.

2010
No.

$0 - $9,999

1

1

7

6

$30,000 - $39,999

7

7

7

7

$60,000 - $69,999

1

1

1

1

$410,000 - $419,999

-

1

-

1

$420,000 - $429,999

1

-

1

-

10

10

16

15

$708,357

$695,990

$708,357

$695,990

Income Band

Total Numbers
Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible
Persons from the reporting entity amounted to:

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet
Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
There have not been any related party transactions requiring disclosure under the Directions of the Minister for Finance during the reporting period.
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PARENT
Total Remuneration

CONSOLIDATED
Base Remuneration

Total Remuneration

2011
No.

2010
No.

2011
No.

2010
No.

$0,000 - $9,999

-

-

1

$10,000 - $19,999

1

-

-

$80,000 - $89,999

-

-

$110,000 - $119,999

-

-

$120,000 - $129,999

-

$130,000 - $139,999

-

$140,000 - $149,999

Base Remuneration

2011

2010

2011

2010

-

-

-

1

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

3

3

-

-

3

3

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

$160,000 – $169,999

1

1

-

-

1

1

-

-

$190,000 – $199,999

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$210,000 – $219,999

-

2

-

2

-

2

-

2

$220,000 – $229,999

2

-

2

-

2

1

2

-

$230,000 – $239,999

-

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

$240,000 - $249,999

1

-

-

1

1

-

-

1

$260,000 - $269,000

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

$280,000 - $289,999

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

$290,000 - $299,999

1

1

-

-

1

1

-

-

$300,000 - $309,999

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

$310,000 - $319,999

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$320,000 - $329,999

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$340,000 - $349,999

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$360,000 - $369,999

-

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

$370,000 - $379,999

1

1

-

-

1

1

-

-

$380,000 - $389,999

1

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

Total

9

8

9

8

9

8

9

8

$2,191,605

$2,155,005

$1,356,375

$1,331,569

$2,191,605

$2,155,005

$1,356,375

$1,331,569

Total Remuneration
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Executive Officers’ Remuneration
The numbers of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two
columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration
is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2010/2011

Note 23b: Executive Officer Disclosures

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 24: Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

No Events have occurred since reporting date and date of certification of this report which will have a material effect on the information
contained in the financial report.

Note 25: Controlled Entities
Name of entity

Country of incorporation

Equity Holding

Evivar Medical Pty Ltd

Australia

55%

Royal Melbourne Hospital Foundation Ltd

Australia

100%

The equity holding in Evivar Medical Pty Ltd consists of:
- 48.48% directly held shares
- 6.52% indirectly held shares

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the financial report of the subsidiary, Evivar Medical Pty Ltd, contains an Inherent Uncertainty audit
opinion. This inherent uncertainty relates to the continuation of that entity as a going concern and therefore whether they will realise their
assets and extinguish their liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report. The continuance
of the company as a going concern is dependent on the ability of the company to continue to raise sufficient finance for its working
capital needs. A shareholder has provided a letter of support; however, their ability to provide funding is dependent on planned capital
raisings. The directors of Evivar Medical Pty Ltd have concluded that the intangible assets contained within Evivar Medical Pty Ltd are
not impaired. Melbourne Health has examined the basis on which this has been determined and is satisfied that the intangibles and
Melbourne Health’s underlying investment is not impaired.

Note 26: Economic Dependency
Melbourne Health is wholly dependant on the continued financial support of the State Government and in particular, the Department of
Health. The Department of Health has provided confirmation that it will continue to provide Melbourne Health adequate cashflow support
to meet its current and future obligations as and when they fall due for a period up to September 2012.
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Ron McNab, Barbara
Wing-Noon and Andrew
Porter celebrated a combined
122 years of having their
original transplanted
kidneys. The trio each
received their transplanted
kidney in the late 1960s,
when such a procedure was
still in its infancy and when
survival rates were low.
The Royal Melbourne Kidney
Transplant Program began
in 1963 and was one of the
first in Australia. Today, it
boasts one of the highest
survival rates and lowest
rejection rates in the country.
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Postal Address:
c/o The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Victoria 3050
Phone: 61 3 9342 7000
www.mh.org.au
enquiries@mh.org.au

